% Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveliand, Ohio 44113-1302

Phone: 216-566-5100
riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, July 26, 2022 in the Board
Room of the Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the
listed items and such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon.
This meeting will be live streamed on RTA's Board Page www.RideRTA com/board via the
meeting date for staff and members of the public. Members of the public may attend in person.

Based on Centers for Disease Control (‘CDC") guidance to aveid crowded places where you
cannot stay 6 feet away from others and QOhio Department of Public Health advice regarding
congregating and social distancing, as well as RTA's interest in protecting community and
employee health and safety, RTA Board Room and Meeting Roam 1 capacity is limited to thirty-
six (36) people to allow for social distancing. To accommodate members of the public, RTA will
limit the number of staff permitted in the Board Room. All persons entering RTA’s Main Office
Building (“MOB") at 1240 West 6" Street are required to maintain a distance of six feet or more
from other individuals who are not members of their family or household.

As a result of a federal court order on April 18, 2022, the CDC's January 29, 2021 order
requiring masks on public transportation conveyances and at transportation hubs is no longer in
effect. The CDC continues to recommend that people wear masks in indoor public
transportation settings at this time. As a result, GCRTA recommends, but will not require, that
members of the public wear a mask/face covering.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA's website at (www riderta.com/hoard), on RTA's
Facebook page, and RTA's Twitter page.

9.00 AM. Board of Trustees - agenda attached.

india L. Birdsong
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

ILB:tab
Attachment



10.

11.

12

13.

14.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, July 26, 2022

9:00 a.m.

Call to order
Roll Call
Certification regarding notice of meeating
Approval of the June 28, 2022 Board Meeting minutes
Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items:

a. Inperson

b. Phone: 440-276-4600

c. Web form (comments will be forwarded to Board and staff)

Board Governance Committee report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
»  Chair: Ms, Lauren R. Welch

Organizational, Servicas & Performance Monitoring Committee report
« Chair; Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
+  Chair; Mayor Paul A, Koomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
«  Chair: Mr. Terence P. Joyce

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
= Board Liaison: TBD

Ad Hoc Committee reports:

+  Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee — President Charles P. Lucas, Chair

» Ad Hoc Technology Committee - Ms. Luz Pellot, Chair
introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions

Intraduction of resalutions:

A. 2022-62 — Expressing congratulations to the employees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority who retired during the second
quarter of 2022



RTA Board of Trustees

July 26, 2022
Page 2

2022-63 - Authorizing Contract No. 2022-040 with Parsons
Transportation Group Inc. for Project 19 47 - On-Call Rail Engineering
Services - 2022 in an amount not to exceed $450,000.00 for a period of
24 months (RTA Capital and/or Development Funds, Engineering &
Project Development Department budget)

2022-64 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-054 with Delta Railroad
Construction, In¢. for Project 52X - Light Rail Track Rehabilitation
Replacement of the East 75th Street interlocking, as specified and as
required, in an amount not to exceed $3,494,819.00 (RTA Development
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Depariment budget)

2022-65 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-062 with Valvoline, Inc. for the
furnishing of engine oil, as specified and as required, for a period of one
year in an amount not to exceed $332,749.00 (General Fund, Flest
Management Department budget)

2022-66 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-063 with Stelia-Jones
Corporation for the furnishing of switch timbers, as specified and as
required, in an amount not to exceed $146,334.00 for a period of one
year (RTA Development Fund, Power and Way Department budget)

2022-67 - Authorizing Contract No. 2022-75 with Dell Marketing L.P. for
the furnishing of a Microsoft Enterprise License agreement through the
State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative
Purchasing Program, as specified, in amounts NTE $787,140.12 for year
one, $895 096.92 for year two, and $922,881.72 for year three, for a total
contract amount NTE $2,605,118.76 for a three-year period (General
Fund, innovation and Technology Department budget)

2022-68 - Amending appropriations for the current expenses and other
expenditures for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, as
adopted in Resolution No. 2021-112, to increase the transfers to the
reserve fund by 350,000,000 and the Capital Improvement Fund by
$4,497 292

2022-69 — Adopting the tax budget of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2023 and
submitting the same to the Cuyahoga County Fiscal Officer

2022-70 — Authorizing the first amended Memorandum of Understanding
with the Cuyahoga County Board of Health for the Baby on Board - A
Healthy Baby Initiative Program

15. Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

a.

General Fund Revenue — status as of June 30, 2022 versus 2021 acluals



RTA Board of Trustees

July 26
Page 3

16.
17.
18.
19.

20.

21

22,

| 2022

b. General Fund Revenue — status as of June 30, 2022 versus the 2022
budget

¢. Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2022, actual receipts
through July 2022

d. [nventory of Treasury Investments as of June 30, 2022

e. Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirernent Fund {cash basis)
as of June 30, 2022

f. Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through June 30,
2022

g. Report on investment Earnings (cash basis) as of June, 2022

h. Composition of investment Portfolio as of June 30, 2022

i. Banking and Financial Relationships as of Jurne 30, 2022

General Manager's Report
Fresident's Report

Old Business

New Business

Public comments (2 minutes):
a. In person
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
c. Web form (comments will be forwarded to Board and staff)

The next reguiar Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, August 23, 2022 in
the Board Room of the Authority, Reot-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street,
Cleveland, Chio 44113, This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's Board page
(www.RideRTA com/board) by clicking the meeting date. The public is welcome
to attend in person.

Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:24 a.m. June 28, 2022

Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Moss (Vice Chair), Biasiotta, Duarte, Joyce, Koomar, McCall,
Pellot, Weiss

Not present: Weich

Staff: Benford, Birdsong, Brown, Caver, Dangelo, Fields, Fleig, Freilich, Garofoli, Gautam, Houston,
Kirkland, Mitler, Orlando, Pfeiffer, Schipper, Talley, Togher, Walker-Minor, Wiehe

Public: Alired, Altena, Brihl-Pitorac, Brown, Cartwright, Gibbons, Loh, Miller, Pinkney-Butts, Quarles,
Rodriquez

The meeting was called to order at 9:24 a.m. There were nine (9) board members present,

in accordance with the Ohio Open Meetings Act and House Bill 51, signed into law on February
17, 2022, and effective immediately through June 30, 2022, this meeting will be live-streamed on
RTA’s Board Page www.RideRTA . com/board via the meeting date for staff and members of the
public. House Bill 51 allows Board members to participate by telephone or video and be
considered present as if in person. It also allows Board members to vote and be counted for the
purpose of determining a quorum while attending by telephone or video.

It was advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four hours in
advance of the meeting, that the usual notification has been given the news media and other
interested persons, and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of
this Board regarding notice of meeting have been complied with.

Minutes

President Lucas stated that the minutes from the May 24, 2022, Board Meeting had been
previously distributed and reviewed, and asked whether there were any additions and/or
corrections. There were no corrections. The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems

1. Mr. Rodriquez — He is starting a group called One Voice for people with disabilities. He
wants to bring back what other systems are doing around the country and how RTA can
be better. RTA train stations need a police presence. The West Blvd./Cudell Station is

not safe because of the area where it is located.

2. Rev, Pamela M. Pinkney-Butts — She asked about fixing the elevator at the Superior
Station and accommodations and elevators at E. 79t Station. She asked how does the
agenda help people of color. She is upset that the public was asked to leave the Board
Room during the executive session. She commented on the race of people left in the
room making decisions about RTA’s money during the session.




RTA Board of Trustees
June 28, 2022
Page 2 of 7

3.

Josiah Quarles — He is with Clevelanders for Public Transit (CPT). He works at the
Northeast Ohio Coalition for the Homeless. He thanked RTA for jaunching EZfare. With
EZfare boarding, delays can be avoided. Systern wide all door boarding brings benefits
by speeding up trips by 20%. All buses need to have the validator equipment installed.
It's a perfect pairing for the Transit Ambassador (TA) Pilot so that if someone does need
assistance, the TA's can do that. He commended RTA for the TA program but requested
an update.

Evangetlist Anderson — She asked for more elevators, like the LL.ee Van Aken Station.
Restrooms are needed at the rapid stations. The 48A bus needs to go back to the
previous route. The 32 bus needs to be brought back. More security and cameras are
neaded at the rapid stations.

Dontez Taylor - Restrooms are needed for seniors and the disabled. The 48A and 15A
heeds to be brought back.

Carlita Gardner — Complaints are stili coming in about the NextGen service specifically
routes on the east side that have been dismantled. They include the 48A and 15A. The
public concerns are being ignored.

Airric Stewart — RTA has a responsibility for the social and economic well-being of the
community as it applies to the implementation of public transit. RTA has not met that
responsibility. The suggestions he made in the past for the 15A have been ignored. His
suggestions will still provide service to hospitals, schools and public libraries. He never
received an update from Mr. Freilich from the June 9 CAC meeting.

Sherita Montgormery — She was pleased to see the ridership increases. The 15A and 48A
routes should be restored to their previous routes. Ridership could be even better by
adding back routes that travel through the interior of the city. She asked if the Board
looked at the NextGen route changes and if they voted unanimously to approve those
changes.

Committee Reports

There were no committee reports.

Community Advisory Cormrmittee (CAC)

There were no reports from the CAC.

Ad Hoe Committee Reports

Ms. Pellot stated the next Ad Hoe Tech Commitiee Meeting is Thursday, July 21, 2022 at 5 p.m.

introduction of New Employees/Promeotions

New Hires:

*

Marc Bazdar, Transit Folice Officer
Joshua Bazzoli, Legal intern
Melanie Brooks, Laborer



RTA Board of Trustees
June 28, 2022
Page 3 of 7

Tiana Brown, Recruiter

Shawn Burton, Operator

Princess Bush, Operator

Jarrell Fair, Laborer

DevVon Hall, Laborer

Randell Hampton, Operator
Michael Jeter, Operator

Monica Moddox, Assistant Contract Administrator
Jorden Motley, Operator

Zane Patterson, Business Analyst
Mark Pry, Operator

Katrena Smith, Operator

Tina Taylor, Operator

Frazier Tolliver, Operator

* & ¥ & & & 2 = F B 5 8 &= B

Fromotions:
« Lamont Terrell, Equipment Repair Leader
+ Keith Flagg, Equipment Repair Leader
+ Ann Marie Prebish, Contract Administrator
« Jeammie Montalvo, Assistant Equipment Manager

President Lucas asked for an update on operator hiring. Mr. Fields said last May they were 100
operators down with several people in training. Through May of this year, they are 73 operators
down from optimal service needs with 30+ operators in training. For Paratransit, last year, they
were 24 operators down. Through May 2022, they were down to 9 operators with & in training.
Every two weeks there is a training class. They track monthly those who have completed
training. President Lucas said that paratransit ridership is up the highest it's ever been,

Ms. Moss asked if we have capacity to train people. Mr. Fields said we have the capacity and
working on how to improve that. They have looked at the training cycle in general to determine
needs. Ms. Birdsong added that a large part of how long operators are kept in the pipeline is
another part of success. They have reduced that time and the timeframe they are training to
diversify the driving experience and taking on additionatl duties.

Introduction of Resolutions:

A. 2022-52 — Expressing appreciation to Roberta Duarte for her service as a member of
the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority and
extending best wishes for many years to come, the adoption of which was moved by
Ms. McCall, seconded by Mayor Biasiotta and approved by unanimous vote.

Ms. Duarte will be presented a resolution plague, She will be missed. She brought a
lot of zeal and information to the Board.

B, 2022-53 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-19 with Mott MacDonald, LLC for Project
19.43 — On-Call Signal Engineering Services - 2022 in an amount not to exceed
$450,000.00 for a period of 24 months (RTA Capital and/or Development Funds,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget), the adoption of which was
moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Mr. Joyce and approved by unanimous vote,



RTA Board of Trustees

June 28, 2022
Page 4 of 7

C.

2022-54 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-046 with Petrochoice LL.C for the furnishing
of antifreeze, as specified and as required, for a period of one (1) year in an amount
not to exceed $100,259.25 (General Fund, Fleet Management Department budget),
the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Biasiotia, seconded by Mayor Koomar and
approved by unanimous vote.

2022-55 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-047 with Alliance National LTD., dba DeMilta
Iron & Metal LTD. for the recycling of scrap metal, as required, for a period of four
years (revenue generating), the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Joyce, seconded
by Ms. McCall and approved by unanimous vote.

2022-56 - Authorizing Contract No. 2022-071 with Johnson Controls Fire Protection,
LP to provide fire and safety inspection and testing through the State of Ohio’s
Department of Administrative Services Cooperative Purchasing Program, in an amount
not to exceed $131,455.25 for a period of one year, and in an amount not to exceed
$131,455.25 for one option year, for a total contract amount not to exceed $262,910.50
(General Fund, Transit Police Department budget), the adoption of which was moved
by Ms. Moss, seconded by Mayor Koomar and approved by unanimous vote,

2022-57 - Amending Section 410.01 Procurement Policies of the Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Claveland Regional Transit Authority, the adoption of which
was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by unanimous
vote.

Ms. Moss said this provision is related to a leadership title change for the General
Managar, CEQ.

2022-58 — Amending Section 640,04 of the Codified Rules and Regulations and
Section 100.04 of the Personnel Policies Employee Responsibility for GCRTA
Property; repealing Section 628,06 Service Recagnition Program of the Codified Rules
and Regulations; and removing Sections 644.15 Service Recognition Program and
640.01 Disclaimer of the Codified Rules and Regulations as duplicates of Personnel
Policies Sections 400.15 Service Recognition Program and 100.01 Disclaimer, the
adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Mr. Joyce and approved by
unanimous vote.

2022-59 - Amending Section 640.05 Employee Communications with the Media of the
Codified Rules and Regulations and Section 100.05 Employee Communications with
the Media of the Personnel Policies of the Greater Cleveland Regionat Transit
Authaority, the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Ms. MeCall
and approved by unanimous vote.

Ms. Moss said this changes the Media Relations Manager title to Public Information
Officer (P10),

2022-60 — Authorizing the filing of grant applications with the State of Ohio for State
Fiscal Year 2023 financial assistance under all State of Qhio programs, the adoption of
which was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Mayor Koomnar and approved by
unanimous vote,

2022-61 — Authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into an
agreement with Medina County to exchange operating funds for Medina County’s grant



RTA Board of Trustees
June 28, 2022
Page 5 of 7

funds and to provide for Medina County to fund a portion of the cost of the Authority's

251 fiyer route, the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Biasiotta, seconded by
Mayor Koomar and approved by unanimous vote.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer gave the report.
The U.5. unemployment rate was unchanged in May at 3.6%. Chio unemployment went down
from 4% in April 2022 to 3.9% for May 2022. Cuyahoga County unemployment in April was
estimated at 5.5%. The County unemployment rates are not seasonally adjusted which is what
caused the increase in the reported unemployment rate previously. Over the past three years,
the height of the labor force was in February 2020. After the Pandemic, we are back to pre-
COVID unemployment rates.

Ridership has been siowly and steadily increasing. May ridership was up 30.6% compared to
May 2021. YTD ridership is 19.1% above 2021. May passenger fares was $2.25 million or
29.9% higher than May 2021 and 25.6% than budgeted. YTD passenger fares is 23.6% higher
compared to 2021, Sales tax has continued to remain strong. Sales tax is the largest
unrestricted source of revenue for RTA. June 2022 sales tax is based on the economic activity in
March 2022. Receipts were 6.9% higher than June 2021 and 4.8% than budgeted. Out of the
sales tax base, 17 of the 23 categories were positive in June with the largest increases in motor
vehicles/watercraft,

General Managerf/CEQ Report

India L. Birdsong, General Manager, CEO gave the report. Ms. Walker Minor said the
Community Connection Line is a customer friendly way for customers to respond via the website
at www.riderta.com/customerservice, QR code or by calling 216-621-9500. They will take
concerns from the line to the Traction program where they will monitor and measure the
information. The Board held their retreat June 9, 2022, at the Tri-C Corporate College
Conference Center. The Board explored several topics such as building trust, inclusive
communication, board effectiveness, breakout sessions, etc. The facilitators were Sharon Sobol
Jordan, Marty Pollock and Margaret Brooks.

RTA received close to $600,000 to improve transit services in greater Cleveland through the
Areas of Persistent Poverty Program. Mary Fiannery, Mike Schipper and Maribeth Feke have
kept us in the pipeline for grant funding along with our advocacy groups in Columbus and D.C.
The grant provides money for planhing, engineering, or financiai plans to improve transit services
in areas experiencing long-term economic distress. Staff will come back to explain how they will
use the funds. She thanked Senator Sherrod Brown (D-OH) who has been a longtime supporter
of public transit and continues to advocate for RTA.,

The Safety department and Rail department pariicipated in Safety Day at the Cleveland
Metroparks Zoo. RTA had a table with literature on safety and interactive displays. RTA was a
sponsor of the MetroHealth Juneteenth Freedom Fest June 18, 2022, Juneteenth celebrates the
end of slavery on June 19, 1865, and celebrates the rich history of Cleveland’s African American
arts and culiure, RTA also had a table for a portion of the day with giveaways for the community.
RTA was present at several events that day. President Lucas attended four of the Juneteenth
events. DGM of Administration and Externat Affairs, Natoya Walker-Minor spoke at the Midwest
Regional Hispanic Leadership Summit, June 7 in Minneapolis, Minnesota, She spoke about



RTA Board of Trustees
June 28, 2022
Page 6 of 7

workforce and equity. RTA was the first public transit authority to sign the Hispanic Promise this
past February. Panelist were from US Bank, 3M and others.

RTA Board member Valarie J. McCall and former RTA Director of External Affairs and Acting
General Manager, Taras Szmagala, Sr. were honored by the Cleveland International Hall of
Fame, June 7. Both moved the needle on behalf of Cleveland with their work. George Fields,
DGM of Human Resources, served on a panel on workforce development at the APTA Rail
Conference, June 5-8. Staff is reaching out to CSU and the Sewer District to see how we can
move the needle forward. Representatives from FTA, International Transportation Learning
Center and Southeastern Pennsylvania Transit Authority were on the panel. RTA participated in
the Pride Parade. This is a celebration of equity and equality for members of this community.
Thirty (30} employees participated. Operation Kid Watch fingerprinted approximately 80 children.

RTA launched its partnership with EZfare and app creator Masabi, June 22 at Public Square.
EZfare will allow riders to purchase fares via app. Fares are good on several transit systems in
the region, This effort opens the fare capping conversation. The public, staff and local media
were in attendance. President Lucas thanked her for her hard work.

President's Report

Fresident Lucas attended several events mentioned in the General Manager's report. He
enjoyed representing the Board at all the events. He asked for an update on the Transit
Ambassador (TA) Program. Ms. Birdsong said the goal is to hire 10 ambassadors, Two will have
skills in mental health and social work. The rest will have fare enforcement and assistance
duties. We've received over 100 applications. Mr. Fields said they are interviewing candidates.
They anticipate they will narrow down the finalist over the next few weeks and take them through
background checks and testing. They should have the TAs in training by late July. Dr, Caver
said they are working with HR on recruitment. They expect they will train through August and
have the TA’s out on the system by September.

New Business

Mayor Koomar said the ability for Board members to attend virtually and be counted in
attendance and to vote, expires June 30, 2022,

Public Comments

1. Rey. Pamela M. Pinknay-Butts — U.S. President George Washington was the first person
to free slaves in 1799. The first people to free slaves were in Haiti. She is disappointed
with RTA, People of color don't just serve tables and drive buses; they have minds and
make decisions. Woman of color muititask. RTA has a racist agenda. Former Board
President George Dixon lost his life because he raised a complaint of discrimination. All
white males are counting RTA’s money, but disabled people are discriminated against.
The Supreme Court made a decision on women's body so will women be arrested on
public transit. RTA is not listening to the public. Otherwise, the auditors would not be here
today.

2, Loh - The EZfare event was good, but the External Affairs team needs to straighten out
our communication issues, People thought if they use the app, they could use across the
counties. The reason this is important is that other neighboring counties have joined the



RTA Board of Trustees
June 28, 2022
Page 7 of 7

program and the app can be used to purchase tickets based on each county transit
authority’s fare system. That message was buried. She is happy about the Board
Retreat, but the location did not have good transit access. Tri-C offers assistance in their
partnership with RTA. She suggested we use the downtown campus of eastern campus.
The HealthLine vehicles stop too far frorn the platform due to sorne installation that was
put in at each station. This is not good for people using walkers, canes and crutches.

Mr. Rodriguez - He plans to write a letter to Congress about paratransit scheduling wait
times. The call system is outdated, and rmore schedulers are needed.

Evangelist Anderson ~ Maore security, public restrooms and elevators are needed. The
48A 15 and 5 needs to return to their previous schedules. It's hard for seniors to walk to
the stops. The cost to ride the systern needs to be lowered.

Airric Stewart — He referenced the Juneteenth celebration and how the truth was held
back about the end of slavery for two years, RTA held back the truth from the public for a
year concerning his route recommendations. He repeated his proposal for the 50 bus,
which would have served more people. The 48A should have been left in place and just
had weekend service added. RTA will not acknowledge the information he presented to
thern.

Sherita Montgomery — She asked if the public could get copies of the slides., The Board
Adrministrator said the slides will be posted on the Board page. She asked when her
guestion about the Board voting on the NextGen changes would be answered. Ms.
Birdsong said the presentations will be sent to her. The Board received several
prasentations and information was given to the public. Due diligence has been done by
the staff and Board.

Dontez Taylor — He requested more paratransit schedulers. There were 90 calls ahead of
him one day. The operators are nice. The 15A and 48A needs to return to its old service.
Look at the 50 bus. Bring the trolley/circulator service back.

President Lucas requested follow up calls be made to the public. It was discussed at the Board
Retreat that there will be one afternoon meeting this year.

Upcorning Meetings

The next regutar Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, July 26, 2022, in the Board Roormn of
the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This
meeting will be live strearmed on RTA's Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board) by selecting the
meeting date. The public is welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 10:36 a.m.

Attest:

President

Secretary-Treasurer



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-62

EXPRESSING CONGRATULATIONS TO THE EMPLOYEES OF THE
GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY WHO RETIRED
DURING THE SECOND QUARTER OF 2022

WHEREAS, the following employees retired from the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority during the second quarter of 2022 after numerous years of dedicated public
service:

Name Title Work Location
John Robinson Line Maintainer Central Bus
Elisabeth Myers Dispatcher Transit Police
Charles Hutchins Operator Hayden
Thomas Murawski Transit Police Officer Transit Police
David Ackroyd Equipment Maintainer Hayden
Emmanuel Scott Operator Paratransit
Belinda Lampkin Hostler Hayden
Christopher Benton Operator Hayden
Robert Whiting Dispatcher Hayden

WHEREAS, these retirees faithfully gave of their skills, time and talents to provide high
quality public transportation to the community; and

WHEREAS, these retirees did much to contribute to the quality of life in Greater
Cleveland by providing much-needed public transit service and protecting our valuable
environment; and

WHEREAS, the retirees’ outstanding diligence in the performance of their jobs was of
immeasurable value to both riders and residents of Cuyahoga County; and

WHEREAS, these retirees represent hundreds of years of invaluable public transit
experience, and they will be missed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the sincere congratulations and gratitude of the Board of Trustees is
hereby extended to each of the above named employees on the occasion of their retirement
from the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.

Section 2. That the members of the Board of Trustees offer their best wishes to the
retirees for continued success and happiness, which they so richly deserve.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become affective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: July 26, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 ‘
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT 19.47 — ON-CALL RAIL ENGINEERING 2022-63
SERVICES - 2022 Date-
July 21, 2022
VENDOR: PARSONS TRANSPORTATION GROUP INC. Initiator
Engineering & Project
AMOUNT: NTE $450,000.00 FOR 24 MONTH PERIOD Development
Department

ACTION REQUEST:
(& Approval (i Review/Comment [ Information Only {1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract for On-Call Rail
Engineering Services for a period of 24 months.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This project will provide engineering services to support
projects assigned by the Engineering and Project Development Department. Services to be
provided as part of this contract include but are not limited to: the preparation of plans,
specifications, cost estimates, construction duration estimates, construction support services,
and discrete engineering analyses for assigned projects. Projects would principally involve
repair and/or updating of various aspects of the rail line, or discrete analyses of the same for
safety compliance purposes.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposals ("RFP") was posted on the
GCRTA Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapears. Nineteen interested
parties, including potential subcontractors, downtoaded the solicitation package. These
services were solicited through a competitive negotiated procurement, utilizing the Brooks Act
procedures. Under this process, the Authority's evaluation panel first selects the most
technically qualified firm, solicits a pricing proposal from that firm, and negotiates price only
with that firm. Should the Authority determine that an agreement could not be reached with the
most qualified firm, it may reject that proposal and repeat the process with the next most
qualified firm. In this instance, negotiations were held with Parsons Transportation Group Ing,,
the first ranked firm, and an acceptable price was reached,

Parsons Transportation Group Inc. has successfully completed projects for the GCRTA, Sound
Transit, WMATA and the New Jersay Transit Corporation, among others.

The Procurement Department performed a cost analysis and determined the proposed pricing
to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action reqguirements have been
met, Parsons Transportation Group inc. has committed to achieve the 18% DBE participation
goal established for this procurement, which is equivalent to $81,000.00. Parsons has agreed
to utilize the following certified DBE firms: Denise’s Construction and Flagging Services
(African American Female-owned), Dynotec, Inc. (Sub-continent Asian Male-owned), G & T
Associates (Asian Pacific Male-owned), and Pro Geotech, Inc (Sub-continent Asian Male-
owned) in amounts that will be a function of the specific nature of the on-call service required.

POLICY IMPACT. Does not apply.



Staff Summary & Comments 2022.63
On-Calt Rail Engineering Services -~ 2022
Page 2

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital and/or RTA
Development Funds, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not
limited to 100% locat funds and FTA grants to bhe determined, in an amount not to exceed
$450,000.00 for a periad of 24 months.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer, Rejection of this offer would leave the Authority without the
technical expertise of a professional rail engineering firm to supplement the resources of the
Authority's Engineering and Project Management Division.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the July
12, 2022 Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is recommended that
the offer from Parsons Transportation Group Inc. be accepted and the resolution passed
authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and ceriified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, lagal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements,




RESOLUTION NQ. 2022-63

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NQ. 2022-040 WITH PARSONS TRANSPORTATION
GROUP INC. FOR PROJECT 19.47 - ON-CALL RAIL ENGINEERING SERVICES
- 2022 IN AN AMOUNT NOT TQ EXCEED $450,000.00 FOR A PERIOD OF 24
MONTHS (RTA CAPITAL AND/OR DEVELOPMENT FUNDS, ENGINEERING &
FROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority requires professional rail engineering expertise with design
and technical support services for rail projects; and

WHEREAS, the Autharity also requires assistance with safety compliance, specification
development, preparation of plans, specifications, cost estimates, construction duration
estimates, and construction support services; and

WHEREAS, the proposal of Parsons Transportation Group Inc., with an office located at
2501 Stirling Circle #305, Dunedin, FL 34698, to perform said services was received on May 5,
2022 in response to a campetitive solicitation; and

WHEREAS, after negotiations, Parsons Transportation Group Inc. has agreed to
perform the required services in an amount not to exceed $450,000.00 for a period of 24
months: and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Parsons
Transportation Group Inc. to be the most advantageous to the Authority and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE {T RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the negotiated offer of Parsons Transportation Group Inc. to provide
signal engineering design and technical support services under Project 19.43 — On-Call Rail
Engineering Services - 2022, be and the same is hereby accepted,

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Parsans Transportation Group Inc. for the
performance of said services,

Section 2. That said contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital and/or RTA
Development Funds, Enginearing & Project Development Department budget, including but not
limited to, 100% local funds and FTA grants to be determined, in an amount not to exceed
$450,000.00 for a period of 24 months.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any, the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and ali applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Parsons Transportation Group Inc. will attempt to exceed the 18% minimum DBE
goat assigned to this procurement.



Resotution No. 2022-63
Page 2

Section 6, That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: July 26, 2022

Prasident

Attest;

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 ‘
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resoiution No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT 52X — LIGHT RAIL TRACK REHABILITATION | 2022-64
REPLACEMENT OF THE EAST 75™ STREET Date-
INTERLOCKING July 21, 2022
Initiator;

VENDOR: DELTA RAILROAD CONSTRUCTION, INC.

Engineering & Project
Development

AMOUNT: $3,494 619.00 Department
ACTION REQUEST:

® Approval {1 Review/Comment [l Information Only I Other
1.0  PURPQSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract to provide

2.0

3.0

4.0

construction services for Project 52X — Light Raif Track Rehabilitation Replacement of the East
75 Street Interlocking.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The work to be performed under this contract includes, but is
not limited to, the replacement of plates, rail, spikes, clips, crossovers, track surfacing,
undercutting, destressing rail, insulated joints, and welding.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids ("IFB") was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapars. Nineteen {19} interested parties,
including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. Two (2) bids were
received and opened on June 16, 2022, with one (1) deemed non-responsive. The one (1)
responsive bid is as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid

Railroad Construction, inc. $3,484 819.00

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base Bid
price. Delta Railroad Construction, Inc, was determined to be a responsible bidder. The Total
Base Bid price of $3,494,819.00 from Delta Railroad Construction, inc. is 8.87% greater than the
Engineer's Estimate of $3,210,000.00.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met for this procurement. A 10% DBE goal was established for this procurement,
Delta Railroad Construction, Inc. has committed to achieving the DBE participation goal
through the utilization of the following DBE firms:

DBEE(s) DBE Catagory | Scope of Work Amount Parcent
Name/Address
Cook Paving & Construction Co, African Amedcan | Asphalt Paving $49,505.00 1.4%
Brooklyn Heights, OH Female
Garcia Surveyors, Inc. Hispanic Male Surveying $32,799.00 1.0%
Brunswick, OH
Denise's Flagging & Construction African American | Flagging $14.,080.00 0.4%
Warrensville Hts., OH Male
Intelligent Polymer Solutions Caucasian Female | Material Supply | $253,91300 = 7.2%
Charden, O Value at 60%
Total DBE %350,297.00 10.0%
Participation




Staff Summary & Comments

Light Rail Track Rehabilitation Replacemeant of the East 75t Street Interlocking

Page 2

50 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited
to, Capital Grants OH-2021-050-307-5307. OH-2021-050-337-5337, OH-2020-044-
5337, and 100% local funds, for a total contract amount not to exceed $3,494,819.00
($2,795,855.00 in federal funds which represents 80% of total cost).

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer will allow for the continued
degradation of the East 75th Street interlocking.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This project was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the July
12, 2022 Operational Planning & infrastructure Committee meeting. It is recommended
that the bid of Delta Raifroad Construction, Inc. be accepted and the resolution passed
authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None,

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability
of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
requirements,

G?’ﬁeral Manager, Chief Exgcutive Officer

2022-64



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-64

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-054 WITH DELTA RAILROAD
CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR PROJECT 52X — LIGHT RAIL TRACK
REHABILITATION REPLACEMENT QF THE EAST 75 STREET
INTERLOCKING, AS SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, IN AN AMOUNT NOT
TO EXCEED $3,494,819.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING &
PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary to acquire construction services, as
required, under Project 52X — Light Rail Track Rehabilitation Replacement of the East 751
Street Interlocking; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Delta Railroad Construction, In¢., located at 2648 West Prospect
Road, Ashtabula, Ohio 44004, was received on June 16, 2022 in an amount not to exceed
$3,484,819.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Delta
Railroad Construction, inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFOQRE, BE iT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Clevetand Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, QOhio:

Section 1. That the bid of Delta Railroad Construction, Inc. for Project 52X — Light Rail
Track Rehabilitation Replacement of the East 75" Street Interlocking, be and the same is
hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Delta Railroad Construction, Inc. for
Froject 52X - Light Rail Track Rehabilitation Replacement of the East 75" Street Interlocking.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to, Capital
Grants OH-2021-050-307-5307, OH-2021-050-337-5337, OH-2020-044-5337, and 100% local
funds, for a total contract amount not to exceed $3,494,812.00 ($2,795,855.00 in federal funds
which represents 80% of total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Autharity
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any;
the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trusteas; bonding and insurance
requirements; and all applicable laws relating to the contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Delta Railroad Construction, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 10% minimum DBE
goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: July 26, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
100-326 STAFF SUNMMARY AND CONMENTS
01-12-22 ~
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resalution No;
2022-65
CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF ENGINE OIL, AS SPECIFIED & AS Date:
REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR July 21, 2022
VENDOR:  VALVOLINE, INC. initiator:
Fleet Managemant
AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $332,749.00 Department

ACTION REQUEST:
X Approval [ Review/Comment {} Information Only [} Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Authority to enter into a contract for the
furnishing of engine oil, as specified and as required, for a period of one year,

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This contract for engine oil is necessary for the
maintenance of the Authority's revenue and non-revenue vehicles with gasoline, diese! and
CNG fueled engines.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bid (IFB) was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Eighteen interested parties
downloaded the solicitation. Four responsive bids were received an June 29, 2022.

The bid of Vaivoline, Inc. has been determined by the Procurement Department to be the
lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder.

- safetynleen

Digsel GURTA Diesed
Gallens Part # Amount Extended Total Galions GCRTA Fart H Amount Extonded Total
25,000 61-155 501230 5 307,500.00 250000 61195 4 1299 5 324,750.00
230 61-195% 5 12.80 5 2,816.00 220 61-195a 5 14.62 4 3,216.40
550 61-187a 5 1290 % 7,065, S50 G1-187a 5 1265 & 6,963.00
220 Gi-183%a 5 1290 5 2838.m 2K 614183 L 1224 & 2,912.80
LK 61-183h 5 1250 5 32,5000 1,000 61-183h s 1155 5 13,550.00
5 3132,749.00 5 349,392.20

PPC Lubricants Noertheast Lubricants

Diesel GORTA Diesed
Gallons Part # Amaount Extended Tatal Galtons GCRTA Part # Amount Extended Total
25,000 61-195 1370 5 M2E0.00 25000 61-195 5 1575 5 393,750.00
720 G1-19% 5 1a40 5§ 3, 168.00 2X}  61-1954 5 16.75 & 3,685.00
550 61187 5 1298 & 7,135.00 550  61-187a b 1595 % 877250
220 G1-1R3a S 1318 % 2,899.40 120 61-183a 5 1665 & 3,663.00
1,000 &1-183b & 1248 5 12,480.00 1,000 61-183h 5 1565 % 1565000
S 368,186,650 | 5 425,520.50




Staff Summary & Comments 2022-65
Engine Qil
Page 2

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

A price analysis has been performed and the Procurement Departrment has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority, given the current market volatility regarding
fuel products. The bid price is approximately 38% above the budget estimate.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Al Affirmative Action requirements have bean
met. A 0% DBE participation goat was established for this pracurement due to the tack of
certified DBE firms,

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Fleat
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $332,749.00 for the one-year
period.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would impact the Authority's ability to
maintain its vehicles.

RECOMMENDATION: it is recommended that the bid of Valvaline, inc. be accepted and the
resolution passed authorizing the Genearal Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a
contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

f" e
a . /f: DT

76eneral Manager, Chie&Eféc:u.)ive Officer

e



RESOLUTION NO. 202265

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NG, 2022-062 WITH VALVOLINE, INC. FOR THE
FURNISHING OF ENGINE QIL, AS SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A
PERIOD OF ONE YEAR IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $332,749.00
{GENERAL FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regionat Transit Authority requires the furnishing of
engine oil for the Authority's vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Valvoline, inc., located at 100 Valvoline Way, Lexington, Kentucky
40508, for the furnishing of engine oil, as specified and as required, for a period of one year was
received on June 29, 2022, at unit prices resulting in a total contract amount not to exceed
$332,749.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Valvoline,
Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Valvoline, Inc. for the furnishing of engine oil, as specified and
as required, for a period of one year be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to enter into a contract with Valvolinge, Inc. for the furnishing of engine oil, as
specified and as required, for a period of one year.

Section 3. That said contract shall be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $332,748.00 for the ona-year
period,

Section 4. That said confract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upen compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Valvoline, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to this
procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: July 26, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
P1-12-22
THLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2022-66
CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF SWITCH TIMBERS, AS SPECIFIED & Date:
AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR July 21, 2022
VENDOR:  STELLA-JONES CORPORATION Initiator:
Power and Way
AMOUNT:  NOT TO EXCEED $146,334.00 Department
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [ Review/Comment [ Information Only ) Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Authaority to enter inta a contract for the
furnishing of replacement switch timbers, as specified and as required, for a period of one
year.

2.0  DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This confract covers the requirements for the manufacture,
treatment and delivery of switch timbers. These get worn and damaged over time and must be
replaced. These switch timbers are also used during the rehabilitation of the Authority’s right of
way on afl rail lines,

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (iFB) was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Two interested parties
downloaded the solicitation. One responsive bid was received on June 22, 2022
The bid of Stella-Jones Coarporation, in an amount not to exceed $146,334.00, has been
determined by the Procurement Department to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible
bidder. The purchase quantity of 1,010 switch timbers includes 16 various sizes at unit prices
ranging from $100.10 to $2G0,G0,

A price analysis has bean performed and the Procurement Department has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority, The bid price is approximately 4% above the
budget estimate,

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE participation goal was established due to the lack of certified DBE firms.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development
Fund, Power and Way Department budget, including but not limited to, Capital Grant OH-2021-
050-337, in an amount not to excead $146,334,00 ($117,067.20 in federal funds which
represent B0% of the total cost) for the one-year period.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would impact the Authority's ability to
maintain its rail systam.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: Itis recommended that the bid of Stella-Jones Corporation be
accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
to enter into a contract.



Staff Summary & Comments
Switch Timbers
Page 2

90 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Frocurement requirements.

Z .
f{wﬂﬂ:@%‘-é P e

G/eﬁeral Manager, Chief Exqgut,;cé Officer

2022-66



RESOLUTION NQ. 2022-66

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-063 WITH STELLA-JONES
CORPQORATION FOR THE FURNISHING OF SWITCH TIMBERS, AS SPECIFIED
AND AS REQUIRED, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $146,334.00 FOR A
PERIOD QF ONE YEAR (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, POWER AND WAY
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Autharity has a recurring
requirement to replace treated timber switches on the Authority’s rail systermn; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Stella-Jones Corporation, iocated at 1000 Cliff Mine Road, Suite
#500, Pittshurgh, PA 15275, for the furnishing of 1,010 switch timbers, as specified and as
required, for a period of one year, was received on June 22, 2022, at unit prices resuiting in a
total contract amount not to exceed $146,334.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Stella-Jones
Corporation to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Stella-Jones Corporation for the furnishing of up to 1,010
switch timbers, as specified and as required, for a period of one year be and the same is heareby
accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to enter into a contract with Stella-Jones Corporation for the furnishing of switch
timbers, as specified and as required, for a period of one year.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Power and Way Department budget, including but not limited to, Capital Grant QH-2021-050-
337, in an amount not to exceed $146,334.00 ($117,067.20 in federal funds which represent
80% of the total cost) for the one-year period.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any: the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual abligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Stella-Jones Corporation will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal
assigned to this procurement,

Section 6. That this resolution shalt become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: July 26, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: MICROSOFT ENTERPRISE LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR | 2022-67
A PERIOD OF THREE YEARS Date:
July 21, 2022
VENDOR:  DELL MARKETING L.P. Initiator:
tnnavation and
Technology
AMOUNT:  AMOUNT NTE $787,140.12 FOR YEAR ONE, Department

AMOUNT NTE $895,096.92 FOR YEAR TWO,
AMOUNT NTE $922,881.72 FOR YEAR THREE,
FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT NTE $2 606,118.76

ACTION REQUEST:
E Approval [1 Review/Comment {1 Information Only 3 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Autherity to enter a contract for the
furnishing of a Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement from the State of Ohio, Department of
Administrative Services, Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for a period of three (3) years.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority's current PCs and the majority of the file
servers use Microsoft operating systems and applications to conduct daily business across the
Authority, In order to legally upgrade the Authority's operating systems and applications to the
latest supported releases, GCRTA must either purchase individual licenses for @ach PC and
server or enter into an Enterprise License Agreement. An Enterprise License Agreement will
be less costly than purchasing upgrades individually for each PC and server and includes
technical support services from Micresoft. It also includes Software Assurance, which entitles
GCRTA to software upgrades for the duration of the agreement. Microsoft requires a three-
year commitment for an Enterprise License Agreement. The Agreement will include Windows
desktop operating systems, Microsoft Office Professional Plus products including: Word, Excel,
PowerPoint, Access, One Note, and Publisher, as weil as SQL Server, Windows Server
Standard and Data Center and VDI licenses. This Enterprise License Agreement will renew
the licenses obtained under the original agreement three years ago and the subsequent
agreement from 2020.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Section 306.43 (H)(4) of the Ohio Revised Code provides
political subdivisions within the State of Ohio the opportunity to participate in contracts
executed by the State of Ohie, Department of Administrative Services, for the purchase of
supplies, services, equipment, and certain materials. Section 410.03 of the Authority's Codified
Rules and Regulations authorizes the General Manager, Chief Exacutive Officer to utilize the
State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Pregram. The contract amount shall not exceed
$787,140.12, for year one, not exceed $895,096.92 for year two, and not exceed $922,881.72
for year three, for a total contract amount not to exceed $2,605,118.76 for a period of three
years.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Development does not
conduct Affirmative Action reviews or establish goals on procurements included in the State
Cooperative Purchasing Program.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.



2022-67

5taff Summary & Comments
Microsoft Enterprise Licensing Agreement
Page 2

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The contract will be fundad through the General Fund, innovation and
Technology Department budget, in amounts not to exceed $787,140.12, for year one,
$895,096.92 for year two, and $922,881.72 for year threa, for a total contract amount not to

excead $2,605,118.76 for a period of three years.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave our Microsoft products
unlicensed, unsupported and wouid jeopardize the functionality of critical systems vital to the

organization.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the July
12, 2022 Organizational Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. It is
recommendad that the offer of Delt Marketing L.P. be accepted, and the resolution passed
authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None.
Recommended and cerified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, lagal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

» Syl P - T W L
*"’F:‘(enera! Manager, Chief Exescutive Officer




RESOLUTION NQ. 2022-87

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-75 WITH DELL MARKETING L.P. FOR
THE FURNISHING OF A MICROSOFT ENTERPRISE LICENSE AGREEMENT
THROUGH THE STATE OF OHIO, DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE
SERVICES, COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM, AS SPECIFIED, IN
AMOUNTS NTE $787,140.12 FOR YEAR ONE, $895,096.92 FOR YEAR TWO,
AND $922,881.72 FOR YEAR THREE, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT
NTE $2,605,118.76 FOR A THREE-YEAR PERIOD (GENERAL FUND,
INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority requires the ability to update the Autherity's operating systems
and applications to the latest supported releases via a Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement;
and

WHEREAS, the Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement is available through the State
of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative Purchasing Program through Dell
Marketing L.P., located at One Dell Way, Round Rock, TX 78682, at amounts not to exceed
$787,140.12, for year one, $895,096.92 for year two, and $922 881.72 for year three, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $2,605,118.76 for a three-year period; and

WHEREAS, Section 306.43 (H)(4) of the Ohio Revised Code provides political
subdivisions within the State of Ohio, the opportunity to participate in contracts executed by the
State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees authorized utilization of the Cooperative Purchasing
Program in Section 410.03 of the Authority's Codified Ruies and Regulations; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems it is in the best
interest of the Authority to procure the Enterprise License Agreement from Dell Marketing L.P.
utilizing the Cooperative Purchasing Program and recommends acceptance thereof by the
Board of Trustees,

NOw, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Delt Marketing L.P. for furnishing a Microsoft Enterprise
License Agreement for a period of three years be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Dell Marketing L.P. for furnishing a
Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement for a period of three years,

Section 3. That this procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Innovation
and Technology Department budget, in amounts not to exceed $787,140.12 for year one,
$895,096.92 for year two, and $922,881.72 for year three, for a total contract amount not to
exceed $2,605,118,76 for the three-year period.

Section 4, That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
confingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requireaments and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Autharity,



Resolution No. 2022-67
Page 2

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Defl Marketing L.P. will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to

this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: July 26, 2022
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 &gy 000
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2022-68
AMENDING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CURRENT EXPENSES | Date:
AND OTHER EXPENDITURES FOR THE GREATER CLEVELAND July 21, 2022

REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY, AS ADOPTED IN RESOLUTION — ,
NO. 2021-112, TO INCREASE THE TRANSFERS TO THE RESERVE | Initiator: Office of
FUND BY $50,000,000 AND THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND BY | Management &
$4,497,202 Budget

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [1 Review/Comment [ information Only [ Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize an amendment to increase the appropriation in
the General Fund to increase the transfer to the Reserve Fund for the Revenue Stabilization
sub-fund and the transfer to the Capital Improvement Fund.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/AJUSTIFICATION: The proposed amendment will authorize an increase in the
overall appropriations budget for Fiscal Year ("FY") 2022 by $54.5 million to be transferred to
the Reserve Fund for the Revenue Stahilization sub-fund ($50,000,000) and Capital
Improvement Fund ($4,497,292).

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
4.0 DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: The FY 2022 Budget provides for the revenues and expenditures of the
Authority, The increased appropriation in the General Fund will enable funding to be
transferred to the Reserve Fund for the Revenue Stabilization sub-fund and the Capital
Improvement Fund.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT. This amendment will increase the transfers to the Reserve Fund by
$50.0 mitlion and Capital Improvement Fund by $4.5 million. The funds transferred to the
Reserve Fund will e set aside until they are needed to maintain the 1-month ending balance
in the General Fund. The transfer to the Capital Improvement Fund will be utilized to maintain
the state of good repair of current assets.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Meodify or not approve the budget amendment as proposed. This would
impact the Authority's ability to reserve funding for economic downturns or capital projects.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: The proposed 2022 Amended General Fund Budget was reviewed by
the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee on July 12, 2022 and is recommended
for adoption. It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the FY 2022 Amended
General Fund Budget as proposed herein.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and cerified as appropriate to the availability of funds, legal
form and conformance with the Procurement requirements.

,. -

s 5*%{\';4&1 o =y

/ General Manager, Chief E:(e;utr've Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-64

AMENDING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CURRENT EXPENSES AND
OTHER EXPENDITURES FOR THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY, AS ADOPTED IN RESOLUTION NO, 2021-112, TO
INCREASE THE TRANSFERS TO THE RESERVE FUND BY $50,000,000
AND THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND BY $4,497,292

WHEREAS, the Authority has both a legal and managerial raquirement to establish the
revenues o be received for the upcoming fiscal year, including all taxes, user fees, and other
types of revenues, as well as estimates of all expenditures or outlays for the operation of this
public transportation system in the fiscal year to be paid or met from said revenue; and

WHEREAS, in order to meet those reguirements, a budget for the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2022 and ending December
31, 2022 ("FY 2022") was prepared; and

WHEREAS, the Reserve Fund helps to protect the Authority from future economic
downturns, as well as significant increases in fuel and hospitalization costs, to financially plan
for payment of earned vacation hours when an emptoyee separates or refires, to establish a
method to account for future budget years with 27 pay periods, to accumulate sufficient funds to
reptace the Authority's aging revenue vehicles, and to accumulate funds to protect against
substantial decreases in revenues; and

WHEREAS, the Capital improvement Fund is used for the construction and acquisition
of major capital projects for the capital improvement program of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Authority to increase the transfer in the
General Fund to the Reserve Fund by $50.0 million, for the Revenue Stabilization sub-fund; and
transfer to the Capital Improvement Fund by $4.5 million: and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees adopted the FY 2022 General Fund Budget on
December 21, 2021 through Resolution No. 2021-112; and

WHEREAS, the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Commitiee of the Board of
Trustees reviewed and discussed the proposed increase to the FY 2022 General Fund Budget
onJuly 12, 2022 and recommended its approval by the Board on July 26, 2022.

NOW, THEREFORE BE {T RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Qhio:

Section 1. That the appropriations for the current expenses and other expenditures of
the Authority, during the period of January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 ("Fiscal Year
2022"), as set forth in Resolution No, 2021-112, adopted by the Board on December 21, 2021
ars hereby amended as follows:



Resolution No. 2022-68

Page 2
Amended General Fund Balance Analysis
201 2022 2022
Actual Budget Amended Variance
|Begtnning Balance § 132,581,767 1 % 62,360,626 | § 62,360,626
Revenue
Passenger Fares 21,541,061 21,719,563 21,719,583 -
Adwerizing & Canceszions 1,228,020 1,380,000 1,390,000 -
Sales & Use Tax 238,341 747 242 986 048 242,986,048 -
CRRSAA Federal Funding 67.416,466 - - -
ARF Federal Funding 54,815,088 81,199,333 81,199,333 -
imastmant Income or av7e 600,000 600,000 -
Other Revenue 854,246 1,500,000 1,500,000 -
Reimbursed Expenditures 14,804 933 5,000,000 5,000,000 “
Transfer from Resene Fund (Revenue Stabilization) - - "
[Total Revenue 400,099,039 354,304,044 | 354,394,044
[Total Resources £32 680,796 416,755,570 | 416,755,670
Opearating Expenditures
Salaries and Overtime 140,088,330 150,008,342 150,086,342 -
Payroll Taxes and Fringes 57,491,904 58,810,762 58,810,782 -
Fuel ( Diesel, CNG, Prop, Pwr., Gas) 8,101,684 10,451,418 10,451,418 -
Utilities 4,700,271 4,179,636 4,175,636 .
Inventory 12,773 812 13,100,000 13,100,000 -
Serdces and Material & Suppiles 18,818,101 21,886,701 21,886,701 -
Purchase Transporiation 335,470 @, 150,000 8,150,000 -
Other Expenditures 6,018,115 7,100,010 7,100,010 “
Total Operating Expenditures 257,327,702 274,756,879 274,766,870 i}
Transfers 1o (from) Cther Funds
Transfer to (from) the Insurance Fund 2,100,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 -
Transfer to (fom) the Pension Fund 45,000 40,000 40,000 -
Transfars {o Rasene Fund Bh,87R,615 10,878,614 60,878, 615 {50,000,000)
Transfars from the Resene Fund 0] B B
Transfers to (from} Capital n
Bond Retirement Fund 13,835,408 11,500,000 11,500,000 -
Bond Defkasance 57,734,586 0 - -
Capital improvement Fund 43,308,860 40,228,465 44,725,758 {4,497, 202)
Total Transfers to {from) Capital 114,268,853 51,728,465 56,225,758 {4,497,282)
Total Transfers to (from} Other Funds 212,992,468 65,147,080 119,644,373 {54,497,292)
Total Expenditures _ _ 470,320,170 339,903,950 394,401,243 (54,497,292)
Available Ending Balance o . § 62,360,626 | § 76,851,620 l § 22,354,328 | $ B4.407,202

Section 2. That ali other provisions of the appropriations for the current expenses and
other expenditures of the Authority, during Fiscal Year 2022, as set forth in Resolution No,
2021-112, not otherwise amended, shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effactive immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: July 26, 2022

President

Altest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No.:
T 2022-69
ADOPTING GCRTA TAX BUDGET FOR THE 2023 FISCAL YEAR Date:
July 21, 2022

initiator; Office of
Management &
Budget

ACTION REQUEST;
Approval [ Review/Comment [ Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPQSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to adopt the Tax Budget of the
GCRTA for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2023 and submit the same to the Cuyahoga
County Fiscal Officer.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This action is taken as a matter of recommended policy for
the reasons described in part 5.0 balow.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The preparation of a Tax Budget is done as 4 measure of sound fiscal
policy. The budget demonstrates timely budgeting and appropriation procedures. Itis an
element of financial prudence that may bolster the Authority's credit rating. It also fosters
communication and is a needed step for development of the 2023 appropriations budget.
Faifing to adopt the Tax Budget would demonstrate a lower level of financial responsibility.

ECONOMIC IMPACT. This establishes the estimates of revenues for the year and defines in
very broad terms the limits of expenditures anticipated. The 2023 Tax Budget is presentad
with a beginning balance estimated at $38.69 million and $301.81 million in revenues, the
largest source from the Sales & Use Tax estimated at $258.00 million. Total resources are
budgeted at $340.50 mitllion. Qperating expenditures are budgeted at $275.48 million and
transfers to other funds equal $41.87 million for total expenditures of $317.36 million. The
ending balance for the 2023 Tax Budget is budgeted at $23.15 million, which reprasents a 1.0-
month operating reserve.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting the Tax Budget. This wouid put at risk the Authority's
demonstrating fiscal prudence,

RECOMMENDATION: This budget was reviewed by the Operational Planning & Infrastructure
Committee on July 12, 2022, It is recommended that the 2023 Tax Budget be adopted and
filed.

ATTACHMENTS: Nene.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability of funds, legal
form and confognance with the Pro_curement requirements.

,"-:.,—"" '/‘? T __,-g'l:i
e
/ General Manager, ChtEf’Exec?utlve Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-89

ADOOPTING THE TAX BUDGET OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JANUARY 1,
2023 AND SUBMITTING THE SAME TO THE CUYAHOGA COUNTY FISCAL
QFFICER

WHEREAS, a Tax Budget for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
("Authority”) for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2023, has been prepared for the purpose of
providing an estimate of revenues to be received for such fiscal year, including all taxes, user
fees, and other types of revenues, as weil as estimates of all expenditures and outlays for such
fiscal year to be paid or met from the said revenue, alt in conformance with sound financial
practices; and

WHEREAS, said Tax Budget has been made available for public inspection by having
at least two (2) copies thereof on file in the Authority's Office of Management and Budget,
posted on the Authority’s website and posted on the Authority's Twitter and Facebook pages;

and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees held a public hearing on July 12, 2022 on said
budget, of which public notice was given by publication in the Plain Dealer on June 26, 2022,
and in the Call and Post on June 23, 2022.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio;

Section 1. That the Tax Budget of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2023, heretofore prepared and submitted to this Board
of Trustees, copies of which are on file in the Office of Management and Budget, with any
revisions to said tentative budget incorporated therein, is hereby adopted as the official Tax
Budget of said Authority for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2023.

Section 2. That the Director of the Office of Management and Budget is hereby
authorized and directed to transmit to the Cuyahoga County Fiscal Officer a certified copy of
said budget and a copy of this resclution.

Section 3. That this resolution shall bacome effective immediately upon its adaption.

Attachments; 2023 Tax Budget Transmittal Letter and Fund Staterments.

Adopted: July 26, 2022

Fresident

Attest:

Sacretary-Treasurer



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

TAX BUDGET



2023 TAX BUDGET

Rev. Charles P. Lucas, President Date: July 7, 2022
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: India L. Birdsong Subject: FY 2023 Tax Budget
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The 2023 Tax Budget is an initial analysis of the financial trends affecting revenues, with
preliminary forecasts on expenditures and service levels of the Authority. Itis a forward-looking
document toward estimated revenues for the next fiscal year. It is a valuable tool in the budget
development process.

The COVID-19 pandemic continues to challenge expectations and has refined how the
Authority responds to crises. The challenges we faced improved the overall resilience and
preparedness of the Authority, and the past year has been one of great progress.

The Authority continues to manage the effects of the pandemic and continues the commitment
made to our customers and the community. As in the mission, Connecting the Community,
the Authority is transitioning the current mobile ticketing app (RTA CLE) to Transit App with
Ezfare. Customers will be able to purchase tickets on multiple agencies (transit agencies,
Uber, Lyft, scooters, etc), as well as have the same features available as the current app, such
as see when the next bus will arrive and plan trips. This transition will also provide for validators
on our vehicles for more efficient service. The final transition will take place in the 4" Quarter
of 2022.

In the 3 Quarter, the Authority will launch the “Transit Ambassador” program. The program
will consist of eight Ambassadors and two Community Outreach Specialists who will interact
with customers and provide information for purchasing passes, routes, getting on/off the bus,
reporting safety issues, and much more. The Community Outreach Specialists will be available
to assist customers to other community services if needed.

The RTA’s “Rides to Community Immunity” bus has provided Covid-19 vaccines in
collaboration with Care Alliance Health Center to multiple communities in the greater Cleveland
area. It is through partnerships like this that we are able to remove barriers to care and
promote equitable access bringing the vaccines directly to the community.

During the past two years, the Authority has received federal stimulus funding under the
Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Securities (CARES) Act, Coronavirus Response & Relief
Supplemental Act (CRRSAA) and in March 2021 the American Rescue Plan (ARP) allowing
the Authority to strategically use sales tax funding to maintain financial sustainability.
Approximately $60 million of sales tax funding was used to retire a portion of outstanding debt.
This available sales tax funding will be used toward unfunded and underfunded capital projects.
The Authority remains committed to replacing its aging rail fleet, infrastructure and right-of-way,
and investing in the community



General Fund Assumptions

Inflation

Assumption: 3.0%

Rationale:
The Federal Reserve never anticipated inflation this severe, the Fed’s policymakers had
forecast that consumer inflation would stay below their 2% annual target and end 2021 at
around 1.8%. For the past 12 months that ended in April, the annual inflation rate is 8.3% after
increasing to 8.5% in March. This is the fastest jump since 1981, surpassing February's 7.9%.

At the March 16, 2022 meeting, the Fed projected core inflation in 2022 to drop to 4.1% as a
result of monetary policy being enacted. Many economists foresee inflation staying well above
the Fed’s 2% annual target this year but will likely end 2022 at a high rate of about 6.3%. In
2023 the rate should fall faster, down to 3.0% by the end of the year.

Interest Rates
Assumption: 2.5%
Rationale:

The Federal Reserve announced at its May 4" meeting that it would be increasing its target for
the Federal Funds Rate (FFR) by 0.50% marking the first increase since 2018. The Fed has
radically changed course largely in response to the inflationary pressures. The Federal
Reserve raised its benchmark short-term rate by a quarter-point and is expected to keep raising
it, probably aggressively, well into 2023.

The Fed projects there will be five more federal funds rate increases this year: Two half-point
hikes and three quarter-point increases, bringing the federal funds interest rate to 2.5% by the
end of the year.



REVENUES

Passenger Fares
Assumption: $23.3M
Rationale:

Actual Passenger Fare revenue received through May 2022 totaled $10.8 million. This
amount is 22.0% above 2021 actual receipts for the same period. Total Passenger Fares
for 2022 are estimated at $23.0 million, 6.9% above 2021 actual revenues. Based on
current trends, we are projecting ridership to continue to increase slowly in 2023. Total
passenger fares for 2023 are projected to increase by 1.0%.

Advertising & Concessions
Assumptions:

Advertising Contract and Concessions $2.0M
Naming Rights: HealthLine, CSU Line,

and MetroHealth Line $485K
Total $2.5M
Rationale:

Advertising and Concessions revenue is composed of two subcategories. The first
subcategory is comprised of the current advertising contract, concessions, and the new
contract for advertising on the bus shelters. The second category is the Naming Rights,
which includes Cleveland Clinic Foundation and University Hospitals for the HealthLine
and area shelters, Cleveland State University for the CSU Line, Medical Mutual for the
MetroHealth Line, Tri-C District for E. 34" Rapid Station and Huntington Bank for various
shelters along the HealthLine. The Advertising & Concessions category is projected to
total $2.5 million in 2023 and is projected to remain steady each year thereafter for 2024
through 2026 based on contractual terms.



Sales & Use Tax Revenue
Assumptions:
Sales & Use Tax $259.0M

Rationale:

Sales Tax for 2022 is estimated to increase 5.6% compared to 2021. The Authority receives a
1.0% Sales and Use Tax on sales of tangible personal property and on other transactions
subject to the state Sales and Use Tax within Cuyahoga County. The 1% tax is of unlimited
duration and was approved by the voters of Cuyahoga County in July 1975. The tax is levied
and collected at the same time and on the same transactions as the permanent 5.25% Sales
and Use Tax levied by the State, plus the 0.5% temporary state tax, 1.0% levied by Cuyahoga
County and a special 0.25% levied by Cuyahoga County.

The estimate for the 2023 Tax Budget is based on actual receipts through May 2022, with
projections anticipating slow recovery in consumer spending. Sales tax receipts are projected
to increase by 2.5% in 2023 and by 2.0% in 2024 as the economy continues to rebound.

Investment Income
Assumption: $600K
Rationale:

The estimate for Investment Income for 2023 total $600,000. The Federal Reserve Bank
anticipates interest rates to increase to 2.5% by the end of 2022 and another quarter-point is
expected in FY 2023. The estimated Investment Income is based on an average rate earned
over the prior three years. The Investment Income is projected to remain constant in FY 2022
and FY 2023, then dropping slightly the next two years, this estimate is based on the current
carrying balances. In 2022, the Authority has received an average yield of 1.05% on all
investments.

Other Revenue
Assumptions: $11.5M
Rationale:

This revenue category includes various miscellaneous receipts from contractors,
hospitalization, claim reimbursements, rent, salvage sales, transfers from the revenue
stabilization fund, and sale of identification cards. The estimated $10 million revenue
stabilization is reserved to be transferred to the General Fund to ensure a one-month operating
ending balance. The amount received may fluctuate annually. For the 2023 Tax Budget, Other
Revenue is budgeted at $11.5 million.

Reimbursed Expenditures
Assumptions:

Preventive Maintenance Activities $1.0M
Reimbursed Labor $2.0M
Other Reimbursements $2.0M
Total $5.0M



Rationale:

This category is composed of reimbursement of labor costs for capital projects, preventive
maintenance activities within the Operating Budget, and diesel fuel tax refunds. For the 2023
Tax Budget, revenues from Reimbursed Expenditures are budgeted at $5.0 million. For FY
2023 and FY 2024 the authority will retain $1.0 million of preventive maintenance funds. This
will enable the Authority to use the grant funding for unfunded and underfunded capital projects.
Other reimbursements include reimbursed labor, and other reimbursements, which are
projected at $2.0 million each.

EXPENDITURES

Salaries and Overtime
Assumption: $152.2M
Rationale:

Total salaries and overtime for the 2023 Tax Budget are estimated at $152.2 million and
account for 47.9% of RTA’s General Fund expenses. Total wages for 2023, including payroll
taxes and fringes, are estimated to increase by 0.9% compared to FY 2022 projection. This
increase is based on negotiated union payouts and salary increases negotiated and
announced during the current fiscal year.

Payroll Taxes and Fringes
Assumption: $56.7M
Rationale:

Payroll Taxes and Fringe Benefits are budgeted at $56.7 million for the 2023 Tax Budget and
account for about 17.9% of General Fund expenses. The main expenses include payroll taxes,
health care, prescription, vision, dental, uniform allowances, Medicare and PERS (pension)
expenses.



'n
c
o

Assumptions:

Diesel Fuel $3.0M
Gasoline $1.2M
Propane $0.2M
Propulsion Power $2.6M
Compressed Natural Gas $2.5M
Diesel Fuel Tax $1.2M
Total $10.7M
Rationale:

The Energy Price Risk Management Program has helped to stabilize the cost of fuel, which
has been one of GCRTA’s most volatile expenses. The Authority’s diesel fuel usage has
decreased over the years as more CNG buses are placed into service and older diesel vehicles
are retired. For 2023, 20 new CNG buses are planned to be placed in operation and diesel
fuel usage will once again decrease as these newer buses are introduced.

Other Expenditures
Assumptions:

Utilities $4.3M
Inventory $13.2M
Services & Materials $22.0M
Purchased Transportation/ADA $9.2M
Other Expenditures $7.2M
Total $55.9M
Rationale:

The Utilities category includes natural gas (for facility heating), water/sewer, electricity, and
telephone expenses. This category is budgeted at $4.3 million for the 2023 Tax Budget or
1.3% of all General Fund expenditures. Electricity and natural gas usage are managed through
the contracts. The current contract for electricity began in 2018, which stabilized costs through
2021 at favorable prices for the Authority. A new contract for electricity took effect May 2022
extending slightly higher rates until 2027. Natural gas commodity costs are locked in through
mid-2026.

Inventory is budgeted at $13.2 million, or 4.1% of General Fund expenditures. The Supply
Chain Management section of Fleet Management District has helped the Authority to maintain
predictive maintenance repairs on the Authority’s newer fleets and carry out major purchases
for supplies and equipment during the pandemic. The Authority continues to implement the
predictive maintenance program that started in 2015, where parts are replaced based on a
proactive maintenance program.

The main drivers of the Services and Materials category are service and maintenance
contracts, advertising costs, equipment, and other miscellaneous supplies. This category is
budgeted at $22.0 million for the 2023 Tax Budget, 6.9% of all General Fund expenditures.
The out years are planned to increase slightly each year based on contracts and inflation.

Purchased Transportation/ADA is budgeted at $9.2 million for the 2023 Tax Budget. The
Authority entered into 3 new contracts in June 2019 with an option to extend the contract two



additional years with Provide-A-Ride, Senior Transportation Connection, and GC Logistics.
The “Other Expenditures” category include travel and meeting expenses, claims, and other
miscellaneous expenses. For the 2023 Tax Budget, $7.2 million is budgeted for this category.

Transfers

Assumption:

Bond Retirement $9.3M
Capital Improvements $19.2M
Insurance Fund $2.5M
Reserve Fund $10.9M
Total $41.9M
Rationale:

Transfers shown for the Bond Retirement are for the debt service less the investment income
earned in the Bond Retirement Fund. The $9.3 million transfer to the Bond Retirement Fund
for 2023 is needed to pay the principal and interest on all debt for 2023, as well as to maintain
the recommended ending balance.

The transfer to the Capital Improvement Fund covers 100 percent locally funded capital
projects in the RTA Capital Fund, as well as required local matches for most grant-funded
projects in the RTA Development Fund. The total contribution to capital (transfer to the Capital
Improvement Funds and Bond Retirement Fund), at 11.0%, is slightly greater than the
recommended Board policy of a minimum of 10% of Sales & Use Tax revenue and continues
to reflect the significant financial requirements of the Authority’s capital program.

The $2.5 million transfer to the Insurance Fund is required to maintain the Fund Balance at the
current $5 million level and to cover expected expenses for the 2023 Fiscal Year. A transfer
of $10.9 million to the Reserve Fund will cover a $10 million transfer for rail vehicles and $0.9
million which covers 1/12 of 27" pay expenses.

FINANCIAL INDICATORS

The General Fund statement presented in this Tax Budget results in the following performance
against the Authority's financial policy goals.

OPERATING EFFICIENCY

Operating Ratio: The Board policy requires a 25.0% ratio in operating revenues compared to
total operating expenditures. This ratio shows the efficiency of management by comparing
operating expenses to operating revenues. The 2023 Tax Budget yields a 9.6% ratio, which is
below the policy objective. The Operating Ratio for 2022 is estimated at 9.7%. Ridership fell
over 50% due to the COVID-19 pandemic and has not returned to pre-pandemic levels. These
ratios will not be met even though ridership is slowly increasing




Operating Reserve: The Operating Reserve is targeted for a period of 30 days, or 1 month,
meaning the available cash equivalent to one month’s operating expenses to cover any
unforeseen or extraordinary fluctuations. At a projected ending balance of $23.1 million, the
Operating Reserve for the 2023 Tax Budget is budgeted at 1.0 months. The Operating
Reserves planned for 2024 is estimated at 1.0 month. The financial assistance received under
the CARES Act, CRRSAA and ARP have helped sustain operations during the pandemic. The
positive ending balance will ensure a level of stability in mitigating lingering effects of the
pandemic on ridership and passenger fare revenue into 2024

Growth per Year: This policy requires that growth in the cost per hour of service from year to
year be at or below the rate of inflation. The cost per hour of service is a measure of service
efficiency dividing total operating expenses by total service hours. The Growth per Year is the
cost of delivering a unit of service (cost per hour of service) compared to the prior year. The
inflation estimates for 2023 is 3.0%. The 2023 Tax Budget estimates the cost per hour of
service at $165.2, which is 1.8% above FY 2023. This indicator is projected to be met.

CAPITAL EFFICIENCY

Debt Service Coverage: The Debt Service Coverage is a ratio measuring the Authority’s
ability to meet annual interest and principal payments on outstanding debts. The 2023 Tax
Budget estimates the debt service coverage at 4.57, above Board policy minimum of 1.50. The
debt service coverage is projected to be 4.50 in 2024. The authority reduced its debt by $57.7
million in 2021, which has reduced the annual interest to be paid in future years.

Sales & Use Tax Contribution to Capital: Current Board policy requires that a minimum of
10.0% of Sales & Use Tax receipts be applied to the capital needs of the Authority. These
funds are used to meet the Authority’s annual debt service payments, to provide the local match
for grant funded capital projects, and to fund Routine Capital and Asset Maintenance projects
included within the RTA Capital Fund. At 11.0%, this indicator is projected to be met.

Capital Maintenance to Expansion: Several years ago, the Board recognized that our
emphasis must be to maintain the Authority’s existing capital assets and revised this objective
to a policy guideline of 75% to 90% of the Authority’s capital projects. At 100% for the 2023
Tax Budget and each of the out years, the Authority’s emphasis continues to be the
maintenance of existing assets as opposed to expansion projects. Given the financial
constraints of recent years, this continues to remain the best course as the Authority continues
its bus replacement program, equipment upgrades, rail vehicle replacements, and rail
infrastructure improvements.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS

The Authority’s Capital Improvement Funds are used to account for the acquisition,
construction, replacement, repair and rehabilitation of major capital facilities and equipment.
The Capital Improvement Funds are composed of grant funded projects as well as 100% locally
funded items. The funds needed to meet the grant requirements typically require a 20% local



match. Financial resources are appropriated to sustain capital infrastructure needs through
retention of investment earnings, contributions from Sales and Use Tax proceeds, as well as
issuance of debt.

Transportation is a capital-intensive business and the Authority’s focus has been on addressing
various State of Good Repair (SOGR) projects. Over the past few years, the Authority’s
priorities include replacement of rail vehicles and maintenance and repair of rail infrastructure,
including tracks, bridges, signals, and substations. Additional funding has been transferred
each year above the 10% contributions to capital policy goal in order to tackle some of these
projects. For the next three years, the funds received from Preventive Maintenance (PM)
reimbursement will be reduced to $1 million. This will enable funding to be used for unfunded
or underfunded capital projects.

Financial resources are allocated through a comprehensive review process of capital projects,
which prioritizes funding of requested projects. It continues to maintain the focus of the
Authority’s long-term strategic capital plan, as well as to address the existing and future
financial and operational issues.

The 2023 through 2027 estimated capital expenditures are predicated on year-to-date outlays,
obligations and projected commitments, as well as the approved five-year Capital Improvement
Plan. Projected grant revenues include current, as well as, expected traditional and non-
traditional grant awards and are based on a continuation of current FAST Act funding levels.
Over the next ten years, the Authority’s capital program will continue to focus on various SOGR
projects throughout the system. These include the on-going bus replacement program, rail car
purchases (replacing 24 heavy rail and 24 light rail vehicles), rehabilitation of light rail track and
rail infrastructure of signal and overhead catenary systems, and various facility improvement
and upgrades.

BOND RETIREMENT FUND

The General Fund is the source of funds necessary to make the principal and interest payments
for the Authority’s outstanding debt. Such transfers represent the debt service less the
investment income earned in the Bond Retirement Fund. Debt service payments of $9.5 million
are expected in 2023.. The Authority has its debt rated highly by the major rating agencies
(AA+ from Standards & Poor and Aa1 from Moody’s).

INSURANCE FUND

The Insurance Fund includes a combination of self and purchased insurance coverages.
Projected activities in 2023 include a combined $2.9 million for premium outlays and payments
for the settlement of claims. This will require a $2.5 million transfer from the General Fund to
maintain the recommended fund balance set by the Authority’s Risk Management Department.



SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION FUND

Authority employees who were employed by predecessor transit systems are covered by
supplemental benefit payments. Activities expected within this fund in 2023 include $1,100 of
revenue from investment income, projected benefit payments of $9,000 for remaining
employees. An actuarial study is performed every two years to assess the adequacy of these
funds. The authority retains a fund balance at the levels recommended by the actuarial
evaluation.

LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND

In 1988, RTA became involved with the Northern Ohio Law Enforcement Task Force
(NOLETF), a multi-jurisdictional force (formerly known as the Caribbean/Gang Task Force).
RTA's involvement was prompted by increased gang activity found in and around the rail
system and the need to obtain intelligence in this area. In addition to the benefits of intelligence
gathering and improved inter-department relations, RTA derives revenue from seized and
confiscated monies and/or properties of convicted drug dealers prosecuted by the Task Force.

Revenue obtained through the NOLETF may be expended for non-budgeted items for law
enforcement purposes. Furthermore, certain guidelines have been instituted by the State
Attorney General's Office for the reporting and disbursement of funds. Total expenditures for
FY 2023 are estimated at $20,000.

RESERVE FUND

In 2017, the Authority established the Reserve Fund to help protect the Authority from future
economic downturns and cost increases. The Reserve Fund retains funding for five accounts:
Compensated Absences, Fuel, Hospitalization, Rolling Stock, and an account for budget years
with 27 pay periods. A transfer of $10.9 million is budgeted in the 2023 Tax Budget for
replacement of rail vehicles and 27" pay period expenses. In 2023, a transfer of $10 million
will be made to the RTA Development Fund for the Rail Car Replacement and a transfer of $10
million will be made to the General Fund from the Revenue Stabilization fund, ensuring a 1-
month operating reserve at year-end.

In summary, four of the six financial goals meet the Board Policy Goals for the 2023 Tax
Budget. The stimulus funding has helped to maintain a strong position during the pandemic.
The Authority’s biggest challenge is keeping up with the aging infrastructure and SOGR needs,
where Federal, State and Local capital funding is crucial.

10



ATTACHMENT A
General Fund Balance Analysis

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Actual Projection Tax Budget Plan Plan
@inning Balance $ 132,581,757 | $ 62,360,626 | $ 38,693,242 ] $ 23,147,744 | $ 22,675,201
Revenue
Passenger Fares 21,541,061 23,022,671 23,252,898 23,601,691 23,955,717
Advertising & Concessions 1,228,020 2,457,450 2,457,450 2,457,450 2,457,450
Sales & Use Tax 239,341,747 252,700,000 259,000,000 264,180,000 266,821,800
CRRSAA Federal Funding 67,416,466 - - - -
ARP Federal Funding 54,815,088 81,199,333 - - -
Investment Income 97,478 600,000 600,000 500,000 400,000
Other Revenue 854,246 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Reimbursed Expenditures 14,804,933 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Transfer from Reserve Fund (Revenue Stabilization) - - 10,000,000 26,500,000 32,000,000
|Total Revenue 400,099,039 366,479,454 301,810,348 323,739,141 332,134,967
|Total Resources 532,680,796 428,840,080 340,503,590 346,886,885 354,810,168
Operating Expenditures
Salaries and Overtime 140,088,330 151,678,474 152,183,359 156,052,315 166,222,023
Payroll Taxes and Fringes 57,491,909 55,327,234 56,753,344 58,292,662 58,863,044
Fuel ( Diesel, CNG, Prop. Pwr., Gas) 8,101,694 10,286,133 10,693,388 10,742,931 10,713,493
Utilities 4,700,271 4,262,001 4,262,001 4,298,163 4,299,026
Inventory 12,773,812 11,503,277 13,200,000 13,300,000 13,400,000
Services and Material & Supplies 18,818,101 22,210,336 22,042,918 22,172,886 22,615,857
Purchase Transportation 9,335,470 8,708,990 9,150,000 9,235,850 9,321,708
Other Expenditures 6,018,115 6,566,020 7,202,221 7,178,462 7,188,852
Total Operating Expenditures 257,327,702 270,542,465 275,487,231 281,273,270 292,624,003
Transfers to (from) Other Funds
Transfer to (from) the Insurance Fund 2,100,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
Transfer to (from) the Pension Fund 45,000 - - - -
Transfers to Reserve Fund 95,878,615 60,878,615 10,878,615 10,878,615 10,878,615
Transfers from the Reserve Fund - - - (5,500,000)
Transfers to (from) Capital
Bond Retirement Fund 13,835,408 11,500,000 9,276,125 9,105,783 9,456,208
Bond Defeasance 57,734,586 - - - -
Capital Improvement Fund 43,398,859 44,725,758 19,213,875 19,954,017 20,184,788
Total Transfers to (from) Capital 114,968,853 56,225,758 28,490,000 29,059,800 29,640,996
Total Transfers to (from) Other Funds 212,992,468 119,604,373 41,868,615 42,938,415 38,019,611
|Total Expenditures 470,320,170 390,146,838 317,355,846 324,211,685 330,643,614
|Available Ending Balance $ 62,360,626 | $ 38,693,242 $ 23,147,744 $ 22,675,201 | $ 24,166,554




ATTACHMENT B

2023 Tax Budget
Financial Policy Goals
2022 2023 Tax | 2024 2025
Goal 2021 Actual Projection| Budget Plan Plan
> Operating Ratio >25% 8.9% 9.7% 9.6% 9.5% 9.2%
8
(5]
E Cost per Service Hour $154.3 $162.3 $165.2 $168.7 $175.5
g) < Rate of
3 Growth per Year it 0.0% 5.2% 1.8% 2.1% 4.0%
Q
o
o Operating Reserve
(Months) > 1 month 2.9 1.7 1.0 1.0 1.0
. _________________________________________________ _________ ________ ____________|
> Debt Service Coverage >1.5 3.13 9.35 4.57 4.50 412
© o
£ | SalesTaxContributionto | ., 48.0% 22.3% 11.0% | 11.0% | 11.1%
= Capital
B —
S Capital Maintenance to | ., 40, 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0%
Expansion




ATTACHMENT C

Capital Improvement Fund Balance Analysis

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Actual Projection Tax Budget Plan Plan
|Beginning Balance 32,437,292 | $ 148,525,235 $ 176,326,453 | $ 176,103,432 | $ 176,325,679

Revenue

Transfer from General Fund 43,398,859 44,725,758 19,213,875 19,954,017 20,184,788
Transfer from Reserve Fund 49,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Investment Income 118,933 265,000 265,000 265,000 765,000
Federal Capital Grants 87,419,866 133,449,281 64,062,635 65,652,635 65,652,635

CARES Act / CRRSAA Assistance 67,416,467 - - -

ARP Assistance 81,199,333 - - -
State Capital Grants - 9,336,598 19,336,598 19,336,598 19,336,598
Other Revenue 6,587,238 - 24,225,000 35,891,286 34,500,000

|Total Revenue 253,941,363 278,975,970 137,103,108 151,099,536 150,439,021
|Tota| Resources 286,378,655 427,501,205 313,429,560 327,202,968 326,764,701
Expenditures
Capital Outlay 70,436,953 169,975,419 137,326,128 150,877,289 149,028,209
Capital Outlay - CARES Act / CRRSAA 67,416,467 - - - -
ARP Assistance 81,199,333 - - -
|Total Expenditures 137,853,420 251,174,752 137,326,128 150,877,289 149,028,209
|Avai|ab|e Ending Balance 148,525,235 | $ 176,326,453 | $ 176,103,432 | $ 176,325,679 | $ 177,736,492




ATTACHMENT D

Bond Retirement Fund Balance Analysis

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Actual Projection Tax Budget Plan Plan
|Beginning Balance $ 5,946,363 | $ 4,114,410 $ 3,874,210 3,811,885 3,539,718
Revenue
Transfer from General Fund 13,835,408 11,500,000 9,276,125 9,105,783 9,456,208
Transfer from General Fund - Defeasance 57,734,586 - - - -
Investment Income 41,268 135,000 135,000 100,000 100,000
Other Revenue 25,271 - - - -
|Tota| Revenue 71,636,533 11,635,000 9,411,125 9,205,783 9,556,208
|Total Resources 77,582,896 15,749,410 13,285,335 13,017,668 13,095,926
Expenditures
Debt Service
Principal 68,187,986 9,535,000 7,610,000 7,995,000 8,355,000
Interest 5,279,000 2,338,700 1,861,950 1,481,450 1,115,500
Other Expenditures 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500
|Total Expenditures 73,468,486 11,875,200 9,473,450 9,477,950 9,472,000
|Ending Balance $ 4,114,410 | $ 3,874,210 $ 3,811,885 3,539,718 3,623,926




ATTACHMENT E

Insurance Fund Balance Analysis

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Actual Projection Tax Budget Plan Plan
|Beginning Balance $ 5,827,793 | $ 6,161,198 | $ 5,703,198 5,245,198 5,262,198
Revenue
Investment Income 15,760 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000
Transfer from General Fund 2,100,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
|Total Revenue 2,115,760 2,535,000 2,535,000 3,035,000 3,035,000
|Tota| Resources 7,943,553 8,696,198 8,238,198 8,280,198 8,297,198
Expenditures
Claims and Premium Outlay 1,782,355 2,993,000 2,993,000 3,018,000 3,018,000
|Tota| Expenditures 1,782,355 2,993,000 2,993,000 3,018,000 3,018,000
|Ending_1 Balance $ 6,161,198 | $ 5,703,198 | $ 5,245,198 5,262,198 5,279,198




ATTACHMENT F
Supplemental Pension Fund Balance Analysis

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Actual Projection Tax Budget Plan Plan
|Beginning Balance $ 1,288,956 | $ 1,326,577 | $ 1,318,677 | $ 1,310,777 | $ 1,302,877
Revenue
Investment Income 1,012 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100
Transfer from General Fund 45,000 - - - -
|Total Revenue 46,012 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100
|Total Resources 1,334,968 1,327,677 1,319,777 1,311,877 1,303,977
Expenditures
Benefit Payments 8,391 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000
Total Expenditures 8,391 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000

Ending Balance $ 1,326,577 | $ 1,318,677 ] $ 1,310,777 | $ 1,302,877 | $ 1,294,977




ATTACHMENT G
Law Enforcement Fund Balance Analysis

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Actual Projection Tax Budget Plan Plan
|Beginning Balance $ 57,550 | $ 156,171 ] $ 151,221 136,271 | $ 136,321

Revenue
Law Enforcement Revenue 103,257 20,000 5,000 20,000 5,000
Investment Income 41 50 50 50 50
|Total Revenue 103,298 20,050 5,050 20,050 5,050
|Total Resources 160,848 176,221 156,271 156,321 141,371
Expenditures

Capital & Related ltems 4,677 25,000 20,000 20,000 15,000
|Total Expenditures 4,677 25,000 20,000 20,000 15,000
|Ending Balance $ 156,171 | $ 151,221 1 $ 136,271 136,321 | $ 126,371




ATTACHMENT H
Reserve Fund Balance Analysis

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Actual Projection Tax Budget Plan Plan
Minning Balance 51,601,958 | $ 98,598,588 | $ 150,102,203 | $ 141,480,818 | $ 116,259,433
Revenue
Investment Income 118,015 625,000 500,000 400,000 200,000
Transfer from GF for Compensated Absences - - - - -
Transfer from GF for Fuel - - - - -
Transfer from GF for Hospitalization - - - - -
Transfer from GF for Rolling Stock Reserve 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Transfer from GF for 27th Pay 878,615 878,615 878,615 878,615 878,615
Transfer from GF for Revenue Stabilization 85,000,000 50,000,000 - - -
Other Revenue - - - - -
|Total Revenue 95,996,630 61,503,615 11,378,615 11,278,615 11,078,615
|Total Resources 147,598,588 160,102,203 161,480,818 152,759,433 127,338,048
Expenditures
Transfer to General Fund (Compensated Absences) - - - - -
Transfer to General Fund (Fuel) - - - - -
Transfer to General Fund (Hospitalization) - - - - -
Transfer to RTA Development Fund (Rolling Stock) 49,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Transfer to General Fund (27th Pay - 2024) - - - - 5,500,000
Transfer to General Fund (Revenue Stabilization) - - 10,000,000 26,500,000 32,000,000
|Total Expenditures 49,000,000 10,000,000 20,000,000 36,500,000 47,500,000
|Ending Balance 98,598,588 | $ 150,102,203 | $ 141,480,818 | $ 116,259,433 | $ 79,838,048
Rolling Balances
Compensated Absences 3,711,501 | $ 3,727,020 $ 3,740,238 1 $ 3,753,151 | $ 3,762,576
Fuel 2,619,150 2,630,101 2,639,429 2,648,542 2,655,193
Hospitalization 2,681,378 2,692,590 2,702,139 2,711,468 2,718,278
Rolling Stock 673,590 676,406 678,805 681,149 682,860
27th Pay: Salary: 2020 / Hourly 2025 3,811,108 4,709,332 5,607,765 6,508,774 1,892,129
Revenue Stabilization 85,101,860 135,666,754 126,112,441 99,956,349 68,127,012
Total 98,598,588 | $ 150,102,203 | $ 141,480,818 | $ 116,259,433 | $ 79,838,048




ATTACHMENT I

All Funds Balance Analysis

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Actual Projection Tax Budget Plan Plan
@inning Balance 229,741,670 | $ 321,242,807 | $ 376,169,205 351,236,127 | $ 325,501,428
Revenue
Passenger Fares 21,541,061 23,022,671 23,252,898 23,601,691 23,955,717
Sales & Use Tax 239,341,747 252,700,000 259,000,000 264,180,000 266,821,800
Federal 87,419,866 133,449,281 64,062,635 65,652,635 65,652,635
CARES Act / CRRSAA 67,416,467 - - - -
ARP 54,815,088 81,199,333 - - -
State - 9,336,598 19,336,598 19,336,598 19,336,598
Investment Income 392,507 1,661,150 1,536,150 1,301,150 1,501,150
Other Revenue 23,602,965 8,977,450 33,187,450 44,868,736 43,462,450
|Total Revenue 494,529,701 510,346,483 400,375,731 418,940,810 420,730,350
|Total Resources 724,271,371 831,589,289 776,544,936 770,176,937 746,231,778
Expenditures
Personnel Services 197,580,239 207,005,708 208,936,703 214,344,977 225,085,067
Fuel ( Diesel, CNG, Prop. Pwr., Gas) 8,101,694 10,286,133 10,693,388 10,742,931 10,713,493
Utilities 4,700,271 4,262,001 4,262,001 4,298,163 4,299,026
Inventory 12,773,812 11,503,277 13,200,000 13,300,000 13,400,000
Services & Materials 18,818,101 22,210,336 22,042,918 22,172,886 22,615,857
Purchased Transportation 9,335,470 8,708,990 9,150,000 9,235,850 9,321,708
Other Expenditures 7,815,038 9,594,520 10,225,721 10,226,962 10,232,352
Capital Outlay 70,436,953 169,975,419 137,326,128 150,877,289 149,028,209
Debt Service 73,466,986 11,873,700 9,471,950 9,476,450 9,470,500
|Total Expenditures 403,028,564 | 455,420,084 425,308,809 444,675,509 454,166,212

[Available Ending Balance

$321,242,807

$376,169,205

$351,236,127

$325,501,428

$292,065,566




Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
1240 West Sixth Street
Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302

rideRTA.com



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 _
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: FIRST AMENDED MEMORANDUM OF 2022-70
UNDERSTANDING WITH THE CUYAHOGA COUNTY Bato:
BOARD OF HEALTH FOR THE BABY ON BOARD - A July 21, 2022

VENDOR: CUYAHOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH

AMOUNT: $400,000

HEALTHY BABY INITIATIVE PROGRAM - .
Initiater: Programming

and Planning

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [} Review/Comment [ Information Only 1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

50

6.0

FURPQSE/SCOPE: This action wilt allow the Autharity to amend the original Memorandum of
Understanding ("MQU") with the Cuyahoga County Board of Health (*CCBH") approved by the
Board of Trustees on January 19, 2021 for the implementation of the Baby on Board — A
Healthy Baby initiative Program (“Program”) funded through a grant from the Ohio Department
of Transportation (*ODOT") Chio Transit Partnership Program (“OTP2").

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: In 2021, GCRTA and CCBH collaborated and received an
OTP2 grant in the amount of $400,000 to assist transportation needs of expectant and new
mothers in three specific zip codes — 44108, 44110, and 44112 — with high rates of infant
mortality and where transportation was identified as a barrier to accessing healthcare. As
originally approved, the MOU between CCBH and GCRTA provided for GCRTA to distribute
fare media to CCBH at fair market value in an amount not to exceed $100,000. In turn, CCBH
would distribute the fare media to clients enrolled in prenatal programs of CCBH partner
agencies to assist with maternity-related transportation costs. CCBH would then provide
participation data to GCRTA so it could seek ODOT reimbursement for the fare media
provided.

fn 2022, ODOT extended funding for the Program through December 31, 2023 and expanded
Program availability to serve all of Cuyahoga County. ODOT clarified that these operational
transportation costs may include fare media distribution as ariginalfly contemplated by GCRTA
and CCBH's MOU, as well as Program-retated marketing costs within the grant proceeds up to
$38,000 and payment for Program-related micro-transit expenses. The Authority now seeks
authority from the Board to adopt the First Amended MOU with CCBH to account for these
changes and implement the revised program.

PROCUREMENT BACKGRQUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

FOLICY IMPACT: Amending the MOU with CCBH is consistent with GCRTA's Strategic Plan.
The Program, as amended, can create additional ridership while assisting in addressing a
critical social need in the community.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The First Amended MOU will allow GCRTA to increase ridership and
serve this particular segment of the community without expenditure of Authority funds and
permit more expansive use of grant funding within ODOT's approved limits.




Staff Summary & Comments
Amended MOU with Cuyahoga County Board of Health 2022-70

Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject the First Amended MOU. Rejection of the Amended MOU will prevent
GCRTA and CCBH from expanding the program and providing the full range of transportation
assistance to the clients of this programming approved by ODQOT.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the First Amended MOU with CCBH be
approved by the Board of Trustees at its July 26, 2022 meeting.

9.0 ATTACHMENT: Attachment A — Drait of the First Amended Memorandum of Understanding
with the Cuyahoga County Board of Health,

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements,

o

--'L-r_,;:;ffﬁ;‘ﬁﬂr

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

.
% h Exect




ATTACHMENT A

FIRET AMENDED MEMORANDUN OF UNDERSTANDING
Between the
Cuyahoga County Board of Health ("CCBH")
and the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("GCRTA")

WHEREAS, GCRTA received a grant in the amount of $400,000 from the SFY2021 Ohio
Transit Partnership Program through the Qhio Bepartment of Transportation ("ODOT") for the
Baby on Board - A Healthy Baby Initiative Program ("Program”) to provide bus passes to CCBH
for distribution to agencies serving pregnant women living in certain ZIP codes with very high
rates of infant mortality within Cuyahoga County and whera transportation was identified as a
barrier to accessing health care.

WHEREAS, the Program was originally approved for a period of twenty-two months, with 50%
of the funds to be spent by May 30, 2021 and 50% to be spent by May 30, 2022,

WHEREAS, on March @, 2021, GCRTA and CCBH enterad into a memorandum of
understanding for the distribution of fare media in an amount not to exceed $100,000.

WHEREAS, the Program has now been extended until December 31, 2023 ("Program Period™),
the limitation to certain ZIP codes has been removed so that the Program is available
throughout Cuyahoga County and the entire $400,000 of the original grant is available to fund
operational fransportation costs including fare media, marketing expenses and other
transportation costs for CCBH clients receiving services refated to the Program.

NOW, THEREFORE, GCRTA and CCBH hereby agree as follows:

GCRTA will serve as the grant manager and fiscal agent, and CCBH will ensure the
enroliment of all program participants, as required by the grant documentation. GCRTA will
request reimbursement from QDOT for the Program expenses documented by CCBH, for a
total amount not to exceed $400,000.

The responsibiliies of CCBH under this agreement are as follows:

1. Distribute fare media received from GCRTA within fourteen (14) calendar days of
receipt.

2. Track the distribution of GCRTA fare media to the Program participants and report the
amounts to GCRTA on a monthly basis,

3. Provide trave! training to educate clients on how to navigate and ride GCRTA services
if required by the participant.

4. Coordinate marketing efforts with GCRTA to promote the Program and provide itemized
receipts of any Program-retated marketing expenses. The total marketing budget



approved under the grant is up to 10% or $38,000.
Inform GCRTA of any Program-related events.

Provide itemized receipts of any Program-related transportation expenses incurred for
Program-related events and documentation to GCRTA of the outcomes of such events.

Collect and analyze data from Program recipients, including, but not fimited to,
demographic statistics on client, number of passengers, address of origin, destination,
trip purpose.

Complete and provide a written report of findings to GCRTA at the end of each
calendar year.

Designate management staff to participate in monthly Program meetings with GCRTA
to discuss and facilitate the achievement of Program goals.

The responsibilities of GCRTA under this agreement are as follows:

1.

Provide fare media to CCBH and seek reimbursement from QDOT for the value of the
fare media.

Report participation numbers to QDOT on a quarterly basis.

Provide customized travel training to CCBH staff to educate clients and staff on how to
navigate and ride GCRTA buses and/or trains if this is requested by CCBH or any of
the participating agencies.

Provide Program-related marketing resources in coordination with CCBH.

Reimburse CCBH for Program-related transportation expenses incurred for Program-
related events in accordance with ODOT requirements,

Designate management staff to participate in monthly Program meetings with CCBH to
discuss and facilitate the achieverment of Program goals.

GCRTA and CCBH mutually agree as follows:

1.

All grant funds must be spent within the Program Period and for the Baby on Board
Program, and for no other purpose.

2, CCBH and GCRTA will be included in ali media coverage.



Cuyahoga County Board of Health

By:

Terry Alien
Health Commissioner

Date:

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority

By:
india L, Birdsong
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

Date:

Approved as to Legal Form and
Correctness,

Sheryl King Benford, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-70

AUTHORIZING THE FIRST AMENDED MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
WITH THE CUYAHOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH FOR THE BABY ON
BOARD - A HEALTHY BABY INITIATIVE PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the Baby on Board — A Healthy Baby Initiative Program (“Program”) is an
innovative approach o serving a targeted population that has historically had transportation
issues in accessing maternity and well-baby appointmants, contributing to high infant mortality
rates; and

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("GCRTA”) Board of
Trustees approved a resolution authorizing a Memorandum of Understanding with the
Cuyahoga County Board of Health (*“CCBH") on January 19, 2021 for the Program; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA submitted a grant application to the Ohio Department of
Transportation ("ODOT"} in collaboration with the CCBH for the Program; and

WHEREAS, ODOT awarded GCRTA $400,000 for the Program in 2020; and

WHEREAS, ODOT has allowed revisions to the original Program expanding the
eligibility of clients to include all of Cuyahoga County and the use of the funds; and

WHEREAS, the implementation of this revised Program necessitates amending the
criginai Memorandum of Understanding betwean GCRTA and CCBH; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA and the CCBH desire to enter into an Amended Memorandum of
Understanding governing the use of the grant funding secured from the ODQT to implement the

Program; and

WHEREAS, the CCBH will distribute fare media to clients enrolied in prenatal programs
of CCBH partner agencies, pay for micro-transit services, or pay transportation costs related to
prenatal programming at market rate, in an amount not to exceed $400,000; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA will serve as the grant manager and fiscal agent for the Program
and request reimbursement from QDOT for the Program expenses documented by CCBH, for a
total amount not to exceed $400,000; and

WHEREAS, ODOT has also allowed up to $38,000 of the total grant proceeds to be
used for promational and marketing expenses generated by GCRTA and CCBH's coordinated
marketing efforts to promote the Program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE iT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Clevetand Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority be and is hereby authorized to enter into the First Amended
Memorandum of Understanding (*"MOU"} with the Cuyahoga County Board of Health to
implement the Baby on Board — A Healthy Baby Initiative Program as revised,



Resolution No, 2022-70
Page 2

Section 2. That funds from the ODOT Ohio Transit Partnership Program SFY 2021
grant will be used to fund the purchase of fare media, micro transit expenses, marketing support
for the Cuyahoga County Board of Heatlth in an amount not to exceed $400,000.

Section 3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: July 26, 2022

President

Attested;

Secretary-Treasurer



Fog ades

WeleEr 00T WsFTZ e et ZELSID'EW 5 OITERIET ORI T%EEeet lzgr s oth 5 PFOTRHIER E IR T -y
SFTOE RIEED TE5'ESTE [ TSR ER WA PT {505 B | [ 06152 DT LIESETE
00D - - - H - ] - : B H -
EOSE 1zv'EEr e - 5 SIFSeZ1Y neen - |
LY letTTre'asl LeT'TTLSS k] - 00 - B et L PEUETOE H
EBHID . - E - b ] - - - -
%859 - 992596 TS 5 DRFESET BE00 9B BYEER 5 SECGOT
=09 - [EXRg = BT H - HED - ji:Frad ] [Tt H -
=10 imEs 58] I£53525"51 LORSEL 5 EWrE BIT3 aTE - 5 OOZE
250t - 55578 2ia'vs T DEFBSEE L= L 203 16TE EEFS § TEERE
xf5a X9p'5E EEATEY VB R T T T 5 ] NETT |- K £ - § LTEE
EL R - EeTEET 186 [ETTE Xt [T 1505'5T) EFTFIPOT BFTHIT
R AT STEEE ;0TS §  TEEBIT HEOD [ELT ] IERFEII [RERTY 5 rE'eT
W - BILTER sos'ar b TS IEL Bt - T50ES L33 1 FLS P
wohe leToee; iTEEI LTTEIE 5 525D 203 SRPES 5l EErET t gEgr
R IS 9 EISTE st & EIFLRE =0a 0 - | e 1 .
I - FeSTELT FRUTEY & [ROERT DG [ 214 x LEITER] TEs'PS t  EaTIl
HETES WEDST TEESLTRT oL TST' T ST T AT IS [l PRTT FLR'BLS L
WETES WEROT ErSITT TRISTE'TRT T STI0LELE RITFL ET EEETa [T 5 PRI
RKEES HPT T 1 BOET ELRSRE T ¥G0' ST T ETe ®0051 ST LETTT E9T'LETT
WELT REDLE TR 2075167 t SIBIsT LTS EEET T 600 S drdase
5 - eE'TarT :1:19 48 £ GBIETH'T g - [Eis g GO3'E2 H -
RETD IseCezl (8Eereld SEF0TY § Taliwe “sln - Lo9'BE CEE'T & IOEIY
T L= -t PLTITOE 3 BRUGR'E =51 Iseczsl le£5 EETh TS R T
RIET WESTE TEERLE EEFTa0'F ¥ 3wEST t WEXE YRR FOR'EEE $  E0LT 5 oeSwa
WHIL #0 % ADNYHIN TIHTHEA [Ty [:1T% THLOL 23 % TENHIN TINETA, E HASTN [T
IN3HHAD THT g EMIHHMD Ha HOMd ENTHHEAD

TIOE “HIE ANMY AN TOOF € INrK 070N CD183d IHL E9d

UNCH TrHANED - Hv3h U0 O T aAnT G N3l HSYD 40 ENOGIE

ALKHOMI MY LISHE AL T¥NDID3Y CNEE3ATT B3I HT JHL

woday Inudnay

CRR13 THANSS - AFAIII B HEwD Tra0d

HETD 3 FIPEMDS HEHLD ONY SUEWISH IS o LOUES
EWIMISRENES MUY NCALTHOM - FEI DA (ASO
A TREITE
LR L s ET]
Lo 43w TN
FLd13234 SA0AN 25T
INVLNESY DREFEIG TYEI03
[HILwIr 19207 W45 ToHFEIS] I3 YWALKES I AL KAA3Hd
THILE M T 30w TRH3T ) AN I REREAIZY LEYHS
SENAAFF XYL B EAXAA NI

THEWD 3G TR FI0L0 ANY LINSWISENEWTE

IERIAIH HIHIO TRUOLAAS

w0

IWCCHA 15THILNI

ABOOKE THNTY

BRIISTNNCS 5531 SLRHH TN

SHCHS SUn kL S OSSR O TS LU LA
(NI BRI

FRCECANS ONILTEId0 T ECLANS
L FEO P ST
~EHRSHYS DLW,

S F HIDNIETRY TYLOLANS
SHLINILL TNAOM
154 ol
SEATIST LNHINLS - TSR
FEILAE B B
S B

TERVE BT B




Tiotakey STy anu=eay

%20 00T g0’ 0y =8 ERTE 4 TPEREL 5§ wFDRITLE 5 wWoOeRT ETigin] ALFFEGR € TLLEEEET 4 OESEEET H A THHID - L3ARTY HTYD Tilo

%870k XIEIT B 252 TXER $EE'BLNER RIFFT - IPE'SIY'E LI"SETY T HEYD 30 STTHOON HIMLD ¥ SLMNIH I3 TYLOLENS
HHO - . - - WA - - - E LTSRN 117 HOLLFO M - IR AT
RS2 I BED'HE TIFEEE'EE SEE'SET'TR SA%0 - E - - S FrH313:2
AT - - - =0 - - - - TURMD YU S
=0 - . woen - - - - L 3490 TeH3EA
EPSD - FFETHL OFriSEE BT w20 - SERE0T SEEEE B S£dI0 SHOIHTTIZHIME
G - - - - e - - . - FAITISESY Dol Lo 30 T IAE
LT lxo0 oz HihapH DOGGEE [l HIT'T =ia 27627 GOTATE o0 HE [HZL9 0T FLELS “TEIOH; JINCN NN I LNSATEE
HETR - DEFECE OEFEIE'S TR eI - BEEBSTE HEB'KEZE [o=rd 1 GUZLwe 5000 2115 IWEIOI4E LNIMETENEITIY LNTHD
wES G [=a59Th Hiza:H| Taeet 0D eAT's YET'Y - LLTEL LLTEE KT SONMLEY X% L INFd O df Sy 3

3o IO LW F RN S TEMTAE

EAPTS PUEH - BRSO TR vy Fine

T SR LE BT 550 sk TEFosL'T Lo g XHLG BEET 9EL'BFL DT INNIAIH FELO Tt
BTy [ 5= TaEl IESETE [T =300 [ETE3TH [ BELYT [T EAHID
=B I el {PPELT] IS8T THI'S0E o a] LYY FLEGT j: 115 18 sk FHOINI LTI LkE
w0 wloss Eres: 13 STSACE HHGTT HOTH - LEFLT TED'T an'os TP TOLN
wil'n I 3El R4 | BEE¢BL Tar'ssk e - - - - SNCASSININED S53% T2H 00 SR
WL - LA P WOEMT EERE k] [Laatid LEgEzl EOTTT ST SHOISTIVEN G SIS 1IN OO SHISEHIAT Y

TTTHIAGH B30

S5TES HEFL B TETI0ETTE FTESI9 ETE H19'EL B H0'TED'E PEFRIY'TE SRE'BESST SUCUERAS B3 W L0 LSS
HETES [T Tl LTE T EAERL BIISIAHTT EALEY wIER SIEORET TN DEBEYTE XOLASE T S

TSRS DRl FE a0

NS WELEL SEE'OSEF FET SEE T S5F R R EITE] HSIIT EETH EYTLNE'T iSELBFT SR ATOM 550 Qe
SECT HHE T HTRICH B TAFE LT %550 g BFSER 56 LEF e = T T
SEL0 - CEEE T CEE'TRET ol ] M - - - - SR
L] - [5€' 30 1928k WTE RETT - SESTE LT cooal SOMYIIYYS RHIGALS - ARHT
T luds ezl [Pl vl o B E LEETILE =997 [aTet Is55021 TG Coa'ts SENE LENA LIS
WET HESG[ =9'sta 5 TSA'EELE $  OwNSRE 4 HEDY EBRT 865'PET % mS'PiE 5 ooo'e % RELLEE Ly

s

TOLOL 0 % EET = TR alL 13904 AL WUOE AT % TONH IS LT HINORE HLWOW
INTHHD [ foi 1HEMD LHIME FEL )]

TEIZ "D INAE 03 0E TR IHL 304
Ok TYEEIED - 130009 01 0399 diN00 TanD3E Wyed 40 180434
LIRS LSAEHE TUNROTH (e 13MT il v3do IHL




WEF L

WL

et 8

mEEE

SRR L
TR
Fl90:

FANYIHEYA

SoBS S
b0l
Gl al
WEDEL

WLETL
SEALEL
WIRTL

IONYHD

153 % Aih %R ALK LZOZ

ZE02

SNSEIN 2T

TFFirE GFLE
IST'ICLETLS
PEREED LGS
L= S
ZER'FAT TS

LAL'ERE UFE

LSLFRE0ES

ULV
QLA
2Z0Z

BTL {GE'GELS
SLE'SISFLLS
G/6'9E0'CES
BON'ITF'GLE
Z08'00E 558
EZH'TZEIES
69608818
]

ala
TEOT

CEE'TELECLS  B0RLLOELLS
ZOY'9ZFZLLIS  BOL'ESeLOLE
SLO'ZIE"168 S6'BELGEES
ZES'EFE'ESE EIBETF RIS
GSELGL'A68  SOFESETISE
CO0'est'98%  BEE'CS2'0ES
#LBIG'E1E PELECTELS
TONLTY LY
QLA QLA
Lzaz 0oz

ALIYOHIAY LISNYYL TYNCIDOTY ONY13ATTD 43 Lv3u9

EZns

il

%FEE

“olE L

%E0ES

sl L

Fl90E

ETCETEE]

ATHLMCE 1202 % HINOKH

SNSE3AA TYNLIY
ATHLHOW
0T

THEOLPESHLS

HEL L DBE'SY2'EEE
ENL] PET'RIQZEL
LES ZRE'BLE'ALE
WE0NE [ SEFELF'ELS
WRETCE | LPY'LTS'ECE
WECE FZDESSELE
WIBTL | ISL7vRAES
HONYHD THOLDW
TZOT
LZOT
SOSHAN
IT0T

EE0E ATHNT HONOHHLE S1d13034 TWnLow
S3IXYL ISN ONY SHIvsS

sjewnss 2zoz veyl saybiy (E1E060'0L§ %Er L
BNV 1707 veyy Jsyby (611751 ZLS %856

aL1A

FEWss 7707 ANF uey seybiy {5/ 2'e00° 1 51 %20°S
[erd>y L20Z Anr uew syBiy {B0s'e LS %2l 2

050085 TFTS
L Rg5 0ES
LIETLSEOES
PSEOZE LTS
1ER'SLPTES
BEOTSHLES
FLE'LELLZS
SrL'RED'LES
00609 AES
200225218
BLE'2I0ES
PEELFE'RLE
B96'0RS'SLE

A vWIEST
oo

L IFE'EITS

SELTESOCE
CEV'OZL'0ES
G 06F 3 2%
SEE OB ZES
SIG'IES LTS
£85'50/ 028
p0'riE 12S
gTLEaT il
ZHTLBLELS
AB5PO0ZS
BOE'TEE L3S
PELDLS BES

AYNLOY
LEOT

IO

ewwng

B LELOLES WIOE
SSO'ZET'ALS EEiTERE]]
Lo B0 LS HITWIAON
LOE'OLS RIS H3g0L30
£SE'EC9'E 1S HIB|INI1d3S
STLEES 2L 1SN
BER'FACELS Koy
PoL'GZE'SLE i
Z0L'ESE'SLE AN
G9¥0IF9LE TEdY
LiF BT LES HoYYW
POz O5Y'E1S PR
FCLEOE'RE Ay

TN [SETFERT:F]
2714 HLINO®



Yeb¥L

Yeab |
SRtE 0
Y lEE
WEL D
%GO
REE0
SiE'T
%A%
00°C
FeBYL
Ye8tri

060
SRRt
SeEED

B b

WEED
Sear

HPs L

MEE0
ki
%lE0
HEED
YaBF b
WEEE
VST
WSE'E
Wo0E
YoL|
YeIED
W®RLT
YRlS G
FrAsrA
HEED

%007

wyle

0% 9SZ'9iE L%

L 0% ELETET 18 L
L o TrLEES L
95Z°6.1% POLLEL'ED LS
i 0% GEE LOLS L
L o 005'8LES L
1 o SEF'BEL'ES !
15} ¢lsigi 0O0'0C0'G58 GEDY
5401 LPELES OLL'IBB'BS  £ROL
2101 OGO'3ZE SEC1E8'rE D01
Zar S0E°0LE STLPFE'TS Gry
L o3 TRE'GLE'EES L

S81°Z9LS
L 0% EFLPrS !
L of gEn'gLig L
0% SIve0L'ss
1 og BSE'CES L
L 0% Pis WAL L
iP06% 607 ELL 668
' [ BL5'P0E'DLS L
i G PP L
i cs 082'0rES L
i ot £51GES L
i 0% ZEO'OFL'ivE L
faot T20'Es B9 9E'9S SEDE
Sil ZEi'Eg SEF'EER'FE £81
ABOL £5E'A1% COo'0G0'sE SEOE
950l 0sZ'r1% COO'000'ES SAGL
LiG 03¢'51% 0OD'0C0'ES SBGE
168 ELL'ES GRL'¥EE'YS  SBOL
983 ZES'PES 80%'GEG'FE  SBOL
058 Q.88 000'000'cs S80L
BEQ ¥ELES OG5 I65PS  SHO
L 0% 200'85% E
0% FEE'08L'BE
b 0% YLE'DDL8S E
QT4 ALHNLYIW 1S3HILINI IVAONRId  SAYO
JOYH3AY 0L SAYO O3NYsOv IVLGL Wu3),

ITHSAY

et abey

OHD 30 31v1sS
HNYE AT

HNYHE ASH
HNYE A
JAIMES-HNYE ADH
SNYIOSHN 1341158
SNYI0JM 134418
SN0 134418
SNYI0OOHN 134118
OEHG 30 31WI1E

OiHO 40 31VIE
<33MS-HNYE ATH

HNYEA ASH
OO 20 31Y1S

HNYE ASH
HANYE NOLONILNAH
HMMYd JNd
HNYE A
GO 40 31918
SNYICIIN 134ELS
S3ULEND3S JOLTHH
SNYIGOIN 13488
SOVICOIN T34ELS
SOYI00IN 134lES
SOYICOIN 134IES
SOYI02IN 134IES
SAYI0JIN 134IES
SOYIOOIN 1341
HWYH ATH

HMNYE NOIDMNIINAH
NOELNLILSNG

O{HD Y¥1ls
YIS ASH

HO3 ATH-NISYH HOIVD

HIF LW HS

HI3 ATHHILYWN T30

g7H4
JWTHS

8344

giHd

QIHG Y9 lS-HILWW 1307

HO HYLS

INIWITHOINE W

HOF ATH
HHO WYls

HIF AT

LMNDIIV Xl S3WS
LHNCOSW AGOLSND ONd
GHMZ ALIALLTDY 33A0THINT

CHHD "Y1S
g3Hd

d0 HNYBANYT H3AYE

g
S1Hd
g1H4
844
AHNSYIHL SN
8TH4
BIdd

AW ATH-130% LNYHIYIW

LW AINOW
LNTMTHLSNI

ZE0Z '0€ INNT 20 SY

SINIJWLSIANI AHNSYIEL 40 AHOLNIANI

CEOEIEL
CEOTILIL

SEOESLIL
LML LI
EZ0EfLIL
GEQZrLEm
SEOZTLY
GEOZMLE
FE0L/5Eg
EE0L LI

CEGE/LSL
ZE0LLIL

FLAVTALNE
CEDELIL

CEOLfLIL
AL R
cenefliL
CECELIL
CEQEILIL
H20g/LE
P T A AT A
prAInA AL
SO
SEOZILEN
PEOLMEIEL
FEQZASLML
FEQZIOESS
FEOZLE
CEOTFLIL

FALIEAERE
alva

ON NOISNIE TVLOL

CALA S

EAALTA QNN HOISNEd

ONAS HOLWW o307 Triod
LEUZINES
ZE02I0EYS
£Z0Z/0E/2
LZOEILED
LENZIVTIS
LL0TFLE
LE0ZIBErE
CLUENES
ONAS HOLYW Y007

ONAD LNIWIAZHOANT MY YL0L
CEZI0ED

EL0Z0ER  ONNE LNIWNI IO M= fav]

ONAS IINFEASN TWLOL
CEOE/OES
EZOZ/GER
IR JONTHNSNE

ONnd TYHINID Twiol
cZhZ/OED
£g0Z/0Ems
EEDZIOEMS
LelE/0E
ZZOZI0ESS
CE0Z A28
FAA A FAAE
ECOLLES
LHERT
EE0TILEN
LEOZIBIE L
VEGEMGLILL
L EOZH0EE
LE0EE
LE0LAES ONAE IYHINTS

ONAS INFWIFHLIY ONOS THLICL

SE0EAL/G
41¥g

ONrd LNIWIHESY alog
annd

ALTENLIYIN ISYHIMNA

ALIHORINY LISNVEL TYNOIDIN ONYIIAZD BILVIND



L

HRTLL
ekl
SREED
%05E
F AR
%wLLE
WESE
Fr
UhElE

el L

SatL0

THEED
YlG
YEFD
S04 L
S8l
%95 'E
YSED

(AR E RN

9% S03°ZLZE  LCOLPL'BOES
Liv' 258 LEE PP SeS
L o3 0E9 005 555 L
L 0% 1Bt'Z81E L
¥EQL 989rL J0'000'SS SeOL
567 FAAN TIBLEZEFE 597
252 £38°GLE B01'ZE6° P2 LT
BiFD1 TLOTRES Joo'o0s'ss S0l
IF5 IS Y68'SIEFE 9Lg
££L £o5'1% Q08'L¥EFE aly
908"6rs gPraLG'Es
ZF8 IiFs 052 BEFS 5501
29 ITLES GOO0O0'ES  SROL
0sg CIE'ES oOO000'ES 5601
9i8 S¥eis COoOO0'SS GEDL
JBE ¥BG 1% GIECYa'ES ¥ob
OFE £TL'9E GLEGHE'ES ELG
¥E 2BF'0ES BELFEE' TS £15
B 0% 6¥LEE2'SE !
ALENAYH LSIHIINI TrdiDmMidd SAYO
JFOVHIAY 0L SAVO GINHOOY WL0L WHTL

ADVHIAY

z o ¢ abeg

OJHO 30 31w1s
HANYE ATH
SNYI03IN 1331LS
SAUYADIIS OLTIH
SALHRI3IS dOLTHIH
SN 105N 134118
BIHYADIIS OLTIH
SALMAIIS S0L1IH

SMY IO 134118
SMWIOJM 341
SNY OO T34LS
BNYI03M T341S
SNYI0AM 13418
SN0 1341458
S3ALLENIIS S0LTHH
HNYE A3H

NOILRLELSN

CIHO H¥Ls
HI3Z A3H
#1H2
d3 SNXLLYN
S MNYHONYS H3AYE
FIHS
AL0ON AHNSYIAHEL SN
310N AHNSYIHL SN

TN
8344
HiHZ
g3H4
giH+
d7H4
JI0N AHNSYIHE SN
HIF ATH

LHIWNHLSNI

TZOZ ‘0T ANNC 4O SY
SINIWLISIAN] AHNSYIHL 50 AHOLINTANI
ALIMOHLNY LISNYHL TYNOIDTY ANY13AT 1D ¥31vIND

LEOLILIL
LEQLILIL
SEOLOLS
AT AL Al
EEGEFLVE
STOEfrily
EE0T/CE/L 1
ECUEROLY

FEGEIFIE
PEOLISHY
PEDLFOEIE
AL
PECEBIE
FEOCSEB
FEOTIOC
At AT

ERR-in]

ALIHALYI ISYHIHAd

EZOTL
[ A
A A
CZOEILEIS
AV A AL
AL S
CEUEREE
EZOL/EE

VECESFIE
LEgeiSie
LZOEMLIE
FEDCaER
CEO0Lase
CEO0ZISEE
AANEA AL
EZ0L/0ED

d41va

SONNA T I¥1l0L

ONS IASFEIY TYLI0L

dMMNd 3AHISIY

ONfS TP LEWD VLY T¥I0L

QMNE TWildyd iy
aun



ELOZRLS

PEC'094 83

JGEEE ey puog

8000L'ELR 1S ] OOTGSE PO 0LS | OO OOD'SESES O0pse'aol’is ! onoscEaL'es [ oo0s DOOSE'SSL' LS 00°00O'RSY LIPS
GO OGS'L6E O0'0GL 54 L 00 OG0 L O0'0%s 8Lz OG05L'52E acn D008L'SEE COOLOoEd'LL
CC'OSZ'00E'L O0'GES° /BE'L 00ooD'ssL'L OS2 E0E 00529202 oo 0'579'20Z 00r00G's0L g
DO0GLZEY b QUSIE S0 Y NI A Q0'SLE79RF COS/E'o8k [S[ENE] a0 57E'98k DO O00'SCE'EL
OGDSE'8ZE 3 O0SitZES 00GG0'SES'L Q0SLip ivE COSiF' iEL oo J0'SH il o palalep=F s
I DSE'BEE'T OO'SELZFE'T COOR0'SEE'E 0o0gzLsg G0SEL'4s Coo Q8'621°2G 0G'000'sEE 2
FAA 1A LEQEMLTL ZTOTIRL CIOTILEL ZZOZIHMY ZEOTILG ZZOTIEM LVEDEIHEE
wawaanbay ; auawsinbay Bigeieg fajoedey Auzwaambey jeiqeieg fageded Bumpuemsinn
1gaq =L adAasag 1gqag iedpuy 1sa18ju} SOpAdAS 3030 lediauing jsatagey rediaug pmo]

ZZOZ '0E 3NNr 40 SY
SNLYLS GNY 3TINA3HOS 3TIANES 1830
ALMOHLNY LISNYYL TYNCIDIE GNYIEAT IO H31Y3ND

{zzoz 40) apisy 135} asuereg Juauny

DEDT 285
LZ0E D0
9Z0E 393
SZ0Z Dan
ZZ0T 8
s3eq
fumely
jeud

spucq jejo}
'A2Y X2 SBRS-BI0T SoLEg
A9y Xej SBES-GLOZ SINIS
‘ABY XE] SS|ES-CLOT SSuag

S XEL SIES-YFLDE SOURG

hay X&) SRES-TLOZ Seueg
Spuog



REFD Wt 0
T WD %BE0 LABID'ES EZRLORLTPELS
%100 WELT hCTAA EEs'eey FPLBEE' 2923
%109 %BG0 L ATAY LIG'22% 28471085974
Y%l09 YEE D %IL0 BSEBET EBL'BLT'ELTS
Y200 FECT %EL0 E19°0rE S8/.'9ZCTLES
% l0g YWECG Y10 Fli1Eg LELYGEEYES
®100 S0 WELD BEI0LS 880°994 5323
%l0Y 50 WBLD B0E"15% BIEPID L1878
®100 %S0T g ST BE6'ZES BLEZBE LS2S
%00 S%edl0 p A BECIES 046'029'522S
%i00 %800 ECTAY 228 et ZOB40L'EETS
%160 %B0' T WlEG ERF'BES LEURIGLVES
%100 %L 'O B4 rha'Ges L5485 L0T%
# O3 # 1A s R ETEY (SEFE ANV Iv¥E
LIHEVN  GHYONYLS JOVHIAY  LSTUILINI IOVHEIAY

VEOT

Is1A deg 4 pUngy Asunly Anseal] S S[ENDS piSka 1l ¢

'slg Ansesi] ol Qo) spiaid uaeanba uodnoo afziaae Buaop &

BT 600
YA %050 %650
Sadl'L 5L FrEt
%050 %380 %e50¢
S0l 0 %E9'0 $H50
%170 edF %EFD
%l00 TR T
%l00 %5l 0 WELT
#OT3A # QLA a131A
Kb [o4 | JuYaNY1S IOVHIAY
zhe

ZZ0Z ‘0% ANNM HONOYHL 31v¥A 01 HY3A
JAONYWHOIHId LNZWESIAN] 40 AdVINNNS

ALIHORLNY LISNYHL TYNCIDZE ONVIIATD H3LVIHD

¥3AN] (MIONA) 5340 ST13HA IOVHIAY YIH

FATiiAC]

488354
980 e
BOSBOLY
vEE'r3s
OBE'LFS
LBE'2E%
G3aNEY3
LSIHIINI

865'0E0°E1E

BOL'BLBB5ES
8¥5'SCS'GVES
v0e LGEBBES
UES'5EE'08T3
984'0L¥ 0ES
£25'PrS0gzs
JINYIYE
IOVHIAY

Alwd 0L Yv¥3Aa

H39W3530

HIFWIAON

4380120

H3IgW3 1438

isnony

AJnr

aNnr

AW

TEHdY

HIHRW

AWNHg=

AHENINGT
HiNOW



40 | abey

BO0ES 3i¥30 OL ¥v¥3A LZ0Z
BEOLLS 3Lvd O1 HY3A 2202
£0'ZYs 207 aNnP

ST LFS

1603

GL'DEE'ELS JLvd Ol ¥v3A LZ02
GEOOF'GLS ILva OL U3 A 2208
B ELe'ag £Z0T 3WNe

90tle s

0B'8E56FS ILVA OL Hv3A L1202
06'959°081% 3EWQ OL HY3 A 2202
98/ S ZZ0T INNP

Slcs

FE08:'ES

L0ZELS

00'000'ETS

BL'BRB S 7S

¥ 973

9. 8/9'22% J1¥0A OL 4v3A 1202
PeOGE S J1v¥Q 0L U¥3A ZZ0Z
0L eEe'2s ZZ0Z INNT

0L TEE TS

ZZ0Z ANNr

OHOWYLS
LNNOOIW d33MS MNYE ATN
QNN INFWIDEO4NI MY

OIHOEY LS
GNN4 SONTHNSNI

1NROO0Y dI3MS HNYE ATH-LNNODOV LNYHIHIW
INNOSOY AJOLSND ONd

LNNODOY d33ME HNYE ATIM

8344

OIHOEYLS

INNODOY XL SITYS-NOLDNIINNH

QNDd WWHINID

LIAGTIA ASNOW NOLDNELNNH
QNN LNIWI-ILIE aNDg

(S1SVE HSVYD) SONINYVI LNIWLSIANI NO 1HOGIN
ALIHOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOIDIY ANVISAT D NILVIND



OP'E6ZS
ELLLPOZS
gE0Fs

BE OFS

1213
9z'rt
04°0%

0L'0s

08'£35%
6 TPe'eS
FR'E9LLS
5903
S1L'E9LLS

G5LZ80°LSE

ZLS¥0ELTS
L10LL'R6E
00 7es
LLEPL'e6%

¢ o7 abed

31%0 0L 4v3A 20T
Ji90 Ol Uv3A 2262
ZZ0E INNP

S1YVO 0L U¥3A LElT
3490 OL ¥v3A 2262
ZCE INNF

3190 QL U¥3A LE0T
Jivq OL dv3AA 2202
ZZ0Z ANNE

JE%0 O1 U¥3A L2de
3190 01 "3 A 2202
€20 3NMT

ZZ0Z IANNr

FNNODOW 330G HMNYE ATM
aNN: Wiidvd Vi

1TAEYIN ASNOW HANYE ATH
LNNCDODY ALIAILDY S3ACTIHING

ANNGIY d33MS WINTH ATH
OIHOHYLS
GNNd NOISNSd

ANNOOOY d33MS HNYE ATH
HIOLYH TWOO0T1-OIHOYY LS
GNNa HILYW ¥ 207

(S1SVE HSYO! SONINYYI LNIWLSIANI NG 1H0d3y
ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL T¥YNGIDIY ONYIIATTIO ¥4I LVI D



g jo ¢ afbed

WUES 0 SEEG L 'SINSWLSTANE NO GI13IA IOVHIAY
BEG'DE0'CIEE 69L'6.6'65E% (1S00) IoNYIVE LNIWISIAN! JOVHIAY
L80'Z88% 1528588 XO3INGYI INOONT 1SIHIINI
9082425 O0B'TLTS ONIGNT
(PSS eZiel {ose'rolE) ‘DNINNID3g
LSIHIFLNI GINHDOY
RERERLS Litv'aprs (SISVE HSYD) Q3AIZ0TY 1STFHILNI
Jivaocl anne
JY3A 2202
8L°85T°00TS JIVQ OL Wy3A LZoe
TCgeRErL J1vA OL dv3A 220T
05 0P 8rES EZ0Z INNT SANNZ 17% TYLOL
86'GG¥'Z9% iV 0L 89¥3A LZ0Z
1B8'162'0v28 VT OL 8¥3A 2207
24 10G'¥08 20z INNE
1225 INNOIOY dF3A0S HWNYE ATH
L GOG PO OIHOYVLS
aiNnd 3AU3s3d
£Z0Z ANNF

{SISYE HSYD} SONINNYI LNIWLSIANI NO 130dIN
ALIHCHLNY LISNVHL T¥YNOIDAY GNYI3AID HALYIYD



197
£SE

ALlKMALYIA
SOYHIAY

%¥e' L
%l T
%050
%GE 0
%ab |
%SED
%eZ0
a3ia
IOVHIAY

%0000 1
ELTARRTS
%0G v
Bt
%08'8S
%HEDD
“iee
WLCL

40 1NIDIH3d

2887 11T'0.83 PO TR A T TS
000°0FL'L0LS ZF0 6% L0LS
000'000'518 Sl¥'zes'vis
JSOEES /LS (50'ER8'71g
L' 211'1228 pR2'211'122%
ge0'gL1% ge0'gLLs
L1¥'8¥5°8S 201'265°88
INNCAY T¥diDNIEd
E )£
ZZ0Z ‘08 ANNr Sy

0O1704L80d LNIWLSTIANI 40 NOILISOJINOD

OO0 JUBLUISSAL |BI0 )
SAUNIES JUSUELISACE 'S
Jladey ersuwnpcn

JUNCIoY BBy 1pals) sBukmey
BIYD =S

Wnoooy daamg yueg Asy
JUN0ooY 1oy Asuop
ualnsu|



"HOTELLI0I [BLLHLPPE SO
GE-DEOZ "ON UCHTIEDSAY S331SNAE 30 PJROR PUE 0 3RPEI0IY SAHRISIINDY {A1[0g {Bnerl] AXowgny Jsuel [ jeuoi@oy prelaags 131ean BU41 40 SuoienEsY pue SBinY PaUIPal 343 Jo 959 BHIEYD 0} Jaied ases)d

ZTOZ "L YArepy panep Aguliy Jualy o o) UMD AloSiaiy QelSuCESSILILIDT ST SIB0
BOFTTOE JSGLUNN HORIED UOSSIULWOT 31013 Hyg
DZOT ‘AR pazep {saeyy 103271 - WOGH piojusg Sult says 03 ronnto AKSIADY PTG USISSEW LN S21913 G150
TPTEC-ING-EOGT SN WCIUHED {2 0yp UDESSHU LT S3I1T BIE0
3} puE {EX TOT SWoI23%5 SP0] PISIAaY SO
3| BIVEHCELED 1 BG OF SEnpMpUr 3|geaydde 1of papeold Suiag 51 UOEWRHILL ST |

3LON
38pey 1203 BLEG SLUBH OWE
2eJysi3ay puag LOFRRA HI04 MER JO JULE
FILRUNSIALI-OELD WY LS
S AIEPUL
JUNOTRY X2 | SHES PUL JUSLRHIAY pUOY Sleg uosduRun
WO MEITST PUYL Y1
B2 11pad PUE JUNOXYY J8:poisny Jjueq Jnd
S35 Buyueq uiew jueg day
QiYSUCER[B JO FINTER UORRIISY] jERUE Mg ueg
ZZ0T "0F 3un{ yo sy

SOISLIORERY (eRUeUls pue Jupueg
Aoginy ysuesf reuoay PUBBAI[) Ja)EID)



	Agenda
	Minutes
	2022-62
	2022-63
	2022-64
	2022-65
	2022-66
	2022-67
	2022-68
	2022-69
	2022-70
	Secretary-Treasurer's Report

